Agenda - Public Accounts Committee

Meeting Venue: For further information contact:
Committee Room 3 - Senedd Fay Bowen

Meeting date: 18 February 2019 Committee Clerk

Meeting time: 13.15 0300 200 6565

SeneddPAC@assembly.wales

(Pre-meeting)

2.1

(13.15-13.45)

Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of

interest
(13.45)

Paper(s) to note
(13.45)
Audit of Cardiff and Vale University Health Board’s Contractual Relationships
with RKC Associates Ltd and its Owner: Correspondence from Maria Battle,
Board Chair (6 February 2019)

(Pages 1 - 25)

Public Procurement - Next Steps: Evidence session with the Welsh

Government

(13.50 - 15.20) (Pages 26 - 97)
Research Briefing

PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 1 - Welsh Government paper on the Review of the
National Procurement Services and Value Wales

PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 2 - Response from the Future Generations
Commissioner

PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 3 - Response from NHS Wales Shared Services
Partnership

PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 4 - Response from Dr Jane Lynch, Cardiff University

,Ff Cynulliad National
/’ Cenedlaethol Assembly for

Cymru Wales



PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 5 - Response from the Welsh Local Government
Association

PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 6 - Response from Higher Education Purchasing
Consortium Wales

PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 7 - Response from Cardiff Council

Andrew Slade - Director General, Economy, Skills & Natural Resources Group,
Welsh Government

Marion Stapleton - Deputy Director, Cross Cutting Services Strategy team,
Welsh Government

Jonathan Hopkins - Deputy Director Commercial & Procurement, Welsh

Government

Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the

public from the meeting for the following business:
(15.20)
ltems 5,6 & 7

Public Procurement - Next Steps: Consideration of evidence

received
(15.20 - 15.45)

Scrutiny of Accounts 2017-18: Consideration of draft Report
(15.45 - 16.30) (Pages 98 - 171)
PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 8 - Draft Report

Auditor General for Wales Report: Preparing for Brexit
(16.30)
PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 9 - Auditor General for Wales Report



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee
PAC(5)-05-19 PTNI1

Q G| @G | Bwrdd lechyd Prifysgol Ysbyty AthrofaAQ@{]]da ltem 2.1

N, Caordvdd a'r Ero University Hospital of Wales
dL’b _ ’ UHB Headquarters
N H S Ca r_d|ff _and Vale Heath Park Parc Y Mynydd Bychan
University Health Board  cCardiff, CF14 4XW Caerdydd, CF14 4XW

Eich cyf/Your ref:
Ein cyf/Our ref: MB-JTF-02-7278
Welsh Health Telephone Network:
Direct Line/Llinell uniongychol: 02920 745684 i
Maria Battle

Chair
06 February 2019

Mr Nick Ramsay AM

Chair Public Accounts Committee
National Assembly for Wales

By email: SeneddPAC@assembly.wales

Dear Mr Ramsay

Audit of Cardiff and Vale UHB’s contractual relationships with RKC Associates Ltd
and its Owner

| write further to your recent correspondence with an update on progress with the
remaining actions and a copy of the final action plan.

Action plan progress

At the time of last writing, 3 of the 26 actions contained within the action plan provided to
the Committee were outstanding.

e Development of an internal protocol providing a system for senior leaders to
raise concerns — Further to previous detail on the internal protocol | am pleased to
confirm that Raising Concerns was launched from the 22™ October — 26™ October.
This was after approval of the process at the Hospital Services Management Board and
the Local Partnership Forum.

The launch was multi-faceted and included communications from the Chief Executive
through ‘CAV You Heard’ (copy attached) the UHBs weekly newsletter and the launch
of an animation which explains easily how you follow the process and who the key
contacts are if you wish to raise a concern. The animation is regularly played on
monitors throughout the UHB and can also be viewed on the intranet and You Tube via
the following link:

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0NWL42hp8ic

The working group responsible for the launch continues to meet on a regular basis and
a further launch will be undertaken in March 2019. The Group are fully aware of the
need to continually remind staff of the process.

o Circulation of a bulletin to the UHB Board and throughout the UHB reinforcing
the Nolan principles of Good Governance — The Nolan Principles are displayed on
the UHBs website and can be viewed by the Board or indeed all staff at any time. In
addition to this the Board are regularly reminded to review the Nolan Principles to
ensure they abide by them. A link to the website where they are held is at the
following: http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/governance-nolan-principles

Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Caerdydd a’r Fro yw enw gweithredol Bwyrdd Iechyd LIe\Pr;&ﬂéa \a lﬂoala .
Cardiff and Vale University Health Board is the operational name of Cardiff and \iale! tylLo: g rd 0/51‘3\_\‘Q


mailto:SeneddPAC@assembly.wales
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=oNWL42hp8ic
http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/governance-nolan-principles

e Standing Financial Instructions and Standing Orders — An all Wales approach is
being undertaken by the All Wales NHS Board Secretaries Network. Work is ongoing
with the updating of this document through the All Wales approach however, in addition
to this the UHB has undertaken a full review of the Standing Orders and Scheme of
Delegation which will be approved by the Board on 31* March 2019.

e Implement a no purchase order, no payment system to prevent the processing of
manual payments — Although this was a completed action from August 2018 | felt it
was important to update you on the progress which has been made by the UHB. The
Finance Committee held on 30™ January 2019 received an update on the ‘No Purchase
Order No Payment’ process and reported excellent progress in compliance rates which
demonstrated C&V UHB with a compliance rate of 98.4% for January 2019 compared
to an All Wales rate of 90.7%.

The Internal Audit Review of contracts has been completed but not yet issued. The draft
report has an assurance rating of ‘reasonable assurance’ and once the management
responses are completed and have been reported to Audit Committee | will send you a final
copy. The NHS Counter Fraud Service Wales investigation into the two contracts referred to
it has also been concluded and closed with no action from the CPS.

A closure report with the completed action plan will be presented to the February Audit
Committee and March Board and a copy of the same is attached. You will see that within
the report it is recommended that the Audit Committee regularly receive a report on the
action plan to ensure that compliance is sustained.

Within your recent correspondence you also asked for a comment on the news regarding the
£100,000 in legal fees which the UHB paid in relation to an employment tribunal. This was
in relation to the successful defence of a claim for unfair dismissal brought by Alice Casey,
the UHBs former Chief Operating Officer. The UHB's legal fees for defending the claim
were in the region of £100,000 plus VAT. The UHB recovered £20,000 of this by way of a
costs award made by the Employment Tribunal, which is the maximum costs award which a
Tribunal can make. The legal fee also included two earlier discrimination claims, which were
withdrawn by Ms Casey.

Should you require any further assurance please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

Menre, ~ Bellg

LT

Maria Battle
Chair

Encs:
- CAV You Heard
- Report to Audit Committee and Completed Action Plan

Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Caerdydd a'r Fro yw enw gweithredol Bwyrdpﬁ‘tkcpf erggd a’r Fro -
Cardiff and Vale University Health Board is the operational name of Car Vvdle | Health Board 0/5AB\-"Q



CAV You Heard?

Follow us (3 @ 26 October 2018
7, Bwrdd lechyd Prifysgol 4 . i
0/’& \ GIG Caerdydd a'r Fro ] ’
\ ~' J N H S Cardiff and Vale 1;'\ e
o ' University Health Board Caring for People, Keeping Peopie We[l

View email in browser

Chief Exec
CONNECTS

This week Len talks about the launch of the recently updated raising concerns video,
transformation and improvement through our Learning Alliance and encourages staff to
have their flu jab.

This week the first meet the Executive Team session was held at Barry Hospital and Len
thanks staff for attending and sharing their views.

Chief Exec Connects

More Health Board News

Capital, Estates and Facilities Addressing health inequality
are launching a new campaign through English lessons for
to encourage staff to use the speakers of other Languages
postal system more efficiently

o : - Cardiff and Vale UHB’s flu
) campaign off to a flying start
Prof. John Gregory receives

award for excellence in
paediatric endocrinology

Pack Page 3


file:///tmp/www.twitter.com/cv_uhb
file:///tmp/www.facebook.com/cardiffandvaleuhb
http://archive.msendi2.com/?u=237fe40996eac2622f184361a0d1ae85&id=646840fe&e=4b945527
http://nww.cardiffandvale.wales.nhs.uk/pls/portal/url/ITEM/791FD8047DA26AEDE0500489923C16AE
http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/news/49617%20
http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/news/49632
http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/news/49637
http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/news/49650%20

Paediatric Diabetes Team wins|

at a prestigious national
diabetes awards

CAV on Social Media

BE POST SAVVY!

Be smart - think before you post

ail is su
machines.

tionviathe external or

Prepare the item for
distribution vi
int

This message reached 2,324 people on Facebook!

Charity News

*

¥*
I

*

Charity
PackiPage 4

[ . . Haaaasoemms


http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/news/49651
http://www.facebook.com/cardiffandvaleuhb
http://www.twitter.com/cv_uhb

Cardiff & Vale Health Charity recently held its first glittering Blue Tie ball at Cardiff City
Stadium raising a fantastic £14,000 for the PROP Appeal.

Nearly 400 people attended, all with the sole intention of raising money for the PROP
Appeal, which supports those suffering from brain injuries at Rookwood Hospital.

PROP Appeal Ball

I

Charity *
Elusen

: . "
for Joy this Christmas
Jgg?giff & Vale Health Charity's
Children’s Disco Trampoline Party

i )
i} -~
Bring your child along for two hours of

disco bouncing and a party buffet

Dress up in Christmas fancy dress or Christmas jumpers/T-shirts
All money raised will go to the Community Child Health Department.
There will be a lucky dip and raffle on the night

Uanishen Cardiff
R aad Tuesday 27th November
£7.50 5pm - 7pm m

www justgiving .com/fun draising/snugglesthebear
Trampoline socks am included in price

Tickets

Jump for joy this Christmas

Pack Page 5

The Day Surgery Unit at University Occupational Thera-Pets are holding a


http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/news/49656
https://www.justgiving.com/fundraising/snugglesthebear

Hospital Llandough is organising a Christmas Appeal for the animals owned
Christmas gift bag collection for the by people who are homeless.
homeless.

Pet gift collection
Gift bag collection

Health and Wellbeing News and Events

26t

Pack Page 6

AN GIG [eahoeads o o


http://nww.cardiffandvale.wales.nhs.uk/pls/portal/docs/PAGE/NEWS_POST_BOX/NEWS_2016_TO_2021/2018/HOMELESS.PDF
http://nww.cardiffandvale.wales.nhs.uk/pls/portal/docs/PAGE/NEWS_POST_BOX/NEWS_2016_TO_2021/2018/THE%20OCCUPATIONAL%20THERA%20CHRISTMAS%20APPEAL.PDF

CYDTCIRS 74y

or call Cardiff and Vale Public Health Team on 029 21 832 122

[Fnr more information or to book a place, please contact Caroline.Mullins@wales.nhs.uk ]

Health and
Well-being

Pack Page 7

ADTC


http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/your-health-wellbeing

ANl &

FOR HEALTH AND WELLBEING

Are you a painter, printer, photographer,
ceramicist or textile artist?

We’re currently considering submissions
in all media forms for display in our Winter
Open Exhibition at the Hearth Gallery,
which will run throughout December, over
Christmas and New Year.

If you'd like to submit your work for
consideration, please email our Exhibition
Coordinator, Melanie Wotton. December 12th 2018 - January 3rd

email: melanie.wotton@wales.nhs.uk

o Sl
87 NHs

Burdd lechyd Pritigol
Caartyde 3110

Cardit and vale
Universty Health Soard

Pack Page 8

g This week's featured artists is Molly May

Lewis.



Molly May Lewis is a printmaker and fine
artist who has been working with Cardiff
and Vale UHB for several years.

Molly May Lewis

Pack Page 9

BThe Wellbeing of Future - .~

ek s A b § ol


https://cardiffandvale.art/2018/10/26/featured-artist-molly-may-lewis/

TSI GLIVITD MGL : . .
ng today for a better tomorrow’ %, N

English for Speakers
of Other Languages |

Working with Cardiff and Vale College, Public Health
Wales and Velindre, Cardiff and Vale UHB has
developed an innovative suite of health-specific
English language courses for speakers of other
languages (ESOL).

~ The new courses will allow those for whom English is
not a first language to learn and use terminology that
will enable and empower them to have effective
conversations with English-speaking NHS health
professionals, be able to vocalise their symptoms, be
more aware of free national screening programmes,
and engage with preventative health promotion
messages (such as the benefits of quitting smoking or
doing more physical activity) that are so key to a
healthy life.

Cardiff and Vale University I-Ealﬁkoﬁ}ages Tevelop a Children’s Charter in line with

the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) Articles. As part of the
Charter development we would really like to hear your opinions on what you might need in
order to incorporate Children’s Rights. and the Charter specifically. into vour daily workina



life, or if there are any training needs we need to respond to.

Your responses will be anonymous and no identifiable information will be kept. Your
participation in this survey is entirely voluntary.

Children's Charter Survey

Spaces are available at this year's Welsh Grand round Junior Doctor
Public Health Conference. Case Presentation Competition

Register today for the Welsh Grand Round
Public Health Conference

Reminder - Urine

Sampling
Unison AGM Unison election
Topic for nomination form
Discussion 2019
Unison Election Unison AGM
Notice 2019 Agenda
Job of the Week
Pack F

JOB OF THE WEEK £23,023 to £29,608 per annum pro rata


https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/ChildrensCharter%20
http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/news/49642
http://nww.cardiffandvale.wales.nhs.uk/pls/portal/docs/PAGE/NEWS_POST_BOX/NEWS_2016_TO_2021/2018/(08)%20GR%20NOTICE%20FOR%2031%20OCT.PDF
http://nww.cardiffandvale.wales.nhs.uk/pls/portal/docs/PAGE/NEWS_POST_BOX/NEWS_2016_TO_2021/2018/INTRANET%20ITEM%20-%20URINE%20SAMPLING%20REMINDER%20%20OCT%202018_0.PDF
http://nww.cardiffandvale.wales.nhs.uk/pls/portal/docs/PAGE/NEWS_POST_BOX/NEWS_2016_TO_2021/2017/AGM%20NOTICE%20-%20POSTER%202019.PDF
http://nww.cardiffandvale.wales.nhs.uk/pls/portal/docs/PAGE/NEWS_POST_BOX/NEWS_2016_TO_2021/2017/NOMINATION%20FORM%202019.PDF
http://nww.cardiffandvale.wales.nhs.uk/pls/portal/docs/PAGE/NEWS_POST_BOX/NEWS_2016_TO_2021/2017/NOTICE%20OF%20ELECTION%202019.PDF
http://nww.cardiffandvale.wales.nhs.uk/pls/portal/docs/PAGE/NEWS_POST_BOX/NEWS_2016_TO_2021/2017/AGENDA-AGM%202019.PDF

Contact: Linda Edwards, Ward Sister, Sam Davies Ward on 01446 704 164
Closing date: 1 November 2018

Do you want to work with an award winning team in providing high quality
care?

Are you an enthusiastic, dynamic and innovative nurse?

Are you passionate about the care of older people?

If you are, our team is exactly what you are looking for. We are a 23
bedded ward providing patient centred holistic care. We include music
therapy and use of digital technology supported by a local school. We are
supporters of the Johns Campaign and open to new ideas.

and 5 Staff Nurse - Sam es Wa

Bwi ' Bwrdd lechyd Prifysgol
CERW a Y Mg Caerdydd a'r Fro *
Cardiff and Vale N Cardiff and Vale Stonewa"

University Health Board wares | University Health Board Acceptance without exception



http://bit.ly/2PY5gDh

WE ARE HIRING

RYDYM YN CYFLOGI

o | ol

Hittinr:

If you are a self-motivated, enthusiastic and hardworking
individual, this is your chance to join our team.

POSITION AVAILABLE:

BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION
APPRENTICE

CLOSING DATE SUNDAY 4tH NOVEMBER 2018
Do you have a passion for learning and the motivation to succeed?

If yes, then we have the ideal opportunity for you. We are currently looking
to appoint an apprentice who will work in Cellular Pathology Administration.
The successful candidate will join our Apprenticeship Programme and will gain
invaluable workplace experience, whilst achieving a nationally recognised
Apprenticeship qualification in Business Administration.

For further information please contact Emma Bendle on 02920 744337
or email at apprenticeshipacademy.cav@wales.nhs.uk
#TRAINWORKLIVE

Kind and caring Respectful Trust and integrity Personal responsibility
Caredig a gofalgar Ymddiriedaeth ac uniondeb Cyfrifoldeb personol

Cardiff and Vale University Health Board is an inclusive organisation and welcomes diversity in the work place.

Apprenticeship opportunities
for existing staff

Thank You!

| just wanted to note my thanks to your wonderful staff on A1 Link, who looked after me
during a recent admission. The care Iﬁcei\:ﬁd S b&t icient and compassionate in
often very testing circumstances, a coup@o nursesn particular were absolutely brilliant
including Catrin, Mabel and Rhiannon, and the wards HCSW Jayne was a complete ray of
sunshine, who brightened up difficult days for myself and other more elderly complex


http://nww.cardiffandvale.wales.nhs.uk/pls/portal/docs/PAGE/NEWS_POST_BOX/NEWS_2016_TO_2021/2018/APPRENTICESHIP%20OPPORTUNITIES%20FOR%20EXISTING%20STAFF%20NOVEMBER%202018.PDF

patients. The catering staff were also fabulous, ensuring that we were fed and watered,
and there was always a smile, and care.

Being a patient for the first time bought home to me the harsh realities of the pressurised
and often at times insurmountable jobs we have in the NHS, and the difference a smile,
some good food, and good care can bring a tired, anxious and frightened patient, as | was
all of those things.

I'd be very grateful if you were able to pass on my thanks to the staff on A1 Link

Kind Regards, Emily Warren

Compliments on the Web

Training and Development

Acknowledging and Reducing Harm: Applications close soon for Skills to
Sex Work Awareness Training. Manage. If you would like to apply for this
development programme, please make

Reducing harm sure your application is submitted to LED

by 2"d November. Applications received
after this date will not be considered.

Skills to manage

A0 an oya

Pr

Kind and caring | Respectful | Trust and integrity | Personal responsibility

Have you got a success story, a tale to tell or do you just want to shout about something?
Contact the Communications Team by calling 46381 or email us at news@wales.nhs.uk.

Our Partners

P —
Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol ESELER(?EVQIF; WS‘ON
Cymru -
RycyalCnllcgc of Nursing U SATAA R
Wales

MIDWIVES Cy:ﬁﬁf‘\;'ﬂ-fales



http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/compliments
http://nww.cardiffandvale.wales.nhs.uk/pls/portal/docs/PAGE/NEWS_POST_BOX/NEWS_2016_TO_2021/2018/SEX%20WORK%20AND%20HARM%20REDUCTION%20FREE%20TRAINING.PDF
http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/skills-to-manage/%20
http://nww.cardiffandvale.wales.nhs.uk/portal/page?_pageid=253,7905287,253_31107323&_dad=portal&_schema=PORTAL
http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/our-mission-and-vision
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/897/home
http://www.rcn.org.uk/aboutus/wales
https://www.rcm.org.uk/
https://www.unison.org.uk/regions/cymru-wales/
http://www.twitter.com/cv_uhb
http://www.facebook.com/cardiffandvaleuhb
http://www.youtube.com

This email was sent from
Cardiff and Vale University Health Board | Heath Park, Cardiff, CF14 4XW
Why am | receiving this email?
Click here to unsubscribe | Update your profile | Forward to a friend

Pack Page 15


http://list.msendi2.com/about?u=237fe40996eac2622f184361a0d1ae85&id=a31fdb49&c=646840fe&e=4b945527&ln=en
http://list.msendi2.com/unsubscribe?u=237fe40996eac2622f184361a0d1ae85&id=a31fdb49&e=4b945527&c=646840fe&ln=en
http://list.msendi2.com/profile?u=237fe40996eac2622f184361a0d1ae85&id=a31fdb49&c=646840fe&e=4b945527&ln=en

Closure Report - Audit of Cardiff and Vale UHB’s contractual

REOI e relationships with RKC Associates Ltd and its Owner

Meeting: AUDIT COMMITTEE '\D"jte;_'”g 26.02.19

Status: Fc_)r . v For For For Information
Discussion Assurance Approval

Lead Executive: DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report Author
(Title):

SITUATION

DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE GOVERANCE

The report of the Auditor General for Wales regarding the UHB’s Contractual Relationships with
RKC Associates Ltd and its Owner was published in July 2017. It identified a number of serious
concerns in relation to the awarding of the consultancy contracts to RKC Associates Ltd, the
management of the recruitment process to appoint the replacement Director of WOD, and the
way in which information was relayed to the UHB Board and its Remuneration and Terms of
Service Committee

REPORT
BACKGROUND

A report was provided to the Board on 27 July 2017 where it was agreed that the Audit
Committee would monitor the progress of actions and provide the Board with the assurances
required. A further report was received by the Board on 28" September 2017 updating
members of the Board on progress against the action plan.

ASSESSMENT

The UHB, in conjunction with its colleagues in Procurement and Human Resources / Workforce,
developed a comprehensive action plan to make the necessary improvements required to
ensure no similar incidents of this kind occurred in the future. The action plan (attached at the
appendix) contained 26 actions and these are now all considered to be complete therefore
provides the Audit Committee with the assurances it requires to sign off the plan as complete.

It will be important that the actions within the action plan are sustained going forward and it is

therefore recommended that the Audit Committee receive an assurance report from the Director
of Corporate Governance on an annual basis to confirm that the UHB is still compliant.

ASSURANCE is provided by:

e Discussion at Management Executive Team on 11" February 2019.

___/

Bwrdd lechyd Prifysgol
Caerdydd a'r Fro

Cardiff and Vale
University Health Board

CARING FOR PEOPLE FEE LRSI GIG

aLQ7r.'>
KEEPING PEOPLE WELL h NHS




RECOMMENDATION
The Audit Committee is asked to:

e Review the attached action plan in relation to UHB’s Contractual Relationships with RKC
Associates Ltd and its Owner

e Recommend closure of the action plan to the Board on 31 March 2019

e Receive an assurance report from the Director of Corporate Governance on an annual
basis to ensure ongoing compliance and sustainability of actions in the future.

Shaping our Future Wellbeing Strategic Objectives
This report should relate to at least one of the UHB’s objectives, so please tick the box of the
relevant objective(s) for this report

v 6.Have a planned care system where v

1.Reduce health inequalities demand and capacity are in balance

2.Deliver outcomes that matter to v 7.Be a great place to work and learn v

people
8.Work better together with partners to

3. All take responsibility for improving v deliver care and support across care v

our health and wellbeing sectors, making best use of our people
and technology

4. Offer services that deliver the 9. Reduce harm, waste and variation
population health our citizens are v sustainably making best use of the v
entitled to expect resources available to us

5 H 10. Excel at teaching, research,
.Have an unplanned (emergency) . i d imorovement and
care system that provides the right v inhovation an b v

provide an environment where
innovation thrives

Five Ways of Working (Sustainable Development Principles) considered
Please tick as relevant, click here for more information

care, in the right place, first time

Prevention Longterm v°  Integration Collaboration Involvement

Equality and

Health Impact .

Assessment Not Applicable

Completed:

Kind and caring ) ‘(\ Trust and integrity ) Personalresponsibility)

Caredig a gofalgar dd t Cyfrifoldeb personol

Pack Page 17 Bwrdd lechyd Prifysgol
CARING FOR PEOPLE g ,}7‘, GG | bard echyd oo
= Cardiff and Val

KEEPING PEOPLE WELL NHS U?]rivlersiat; HeZI(teh Board



http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/the-wellbeing-of-future-generations-act

/'Q\ GIG | Bwrdd lechyd priysgol
I,

CYMRu | Caerdydd a'r Fro

0\5'/ NHS Cardiff and Vale

WALES | University Health Board

Action Plan in Response to the Wales Audit Office Report in Respect of Cardiff and Vale University
Health Board’s Contractual Relationships with RKC Associates Ltd and its Owner

Conclusion 1 - The way in which the Cardiff and Vale University Health Board (UHB) procured and managed HR consultancy contracts awarded to RKC
Associates fell well short of the standard that the public has a right to expect of a public body

a) The UHB failed to comply with its own procurement procedures when it awarded consultancy contracts to RKC Associates in November 2014 and June 2015
and in consequence both the contracts and payments made under them are potentially unlawful.

b) The award of consultancy contracts to RKC Associates breached public procurement rules.
c) ghe UHB failed to undertake due diligence checks of RKC Associates resulting in the UHB being exposed unnecessarily to financial and reputational risk.

o
d) _The UHB was in breach of its own Standing Financial Instructions when it agreed contracts with RKC Associates which had been drafted by the owner of RKC
ssociates.
Q

e) &he UHB appointed the owner of RKC Associates to deliver consultancy projects, but the UHB utilised her as a senior member of staff and, in consequence,
doas potentially over-claimed VAT amounting to £58,162.

f) As the Officer who signed the contracts with RKC Associates in November 2014 and June 2015, the UHB’s Chief Operating Officer had a duty to ensure proper
process had been followed. The failure to do so has cast doubt on whether the decisions to award these contracts were based entirely on valid considerations.

g) The UHB did not exercise effective financial monitoring of its contracts with RKC Associates, with payments exceeding the contracted value and contractual
expenses not being verified.

Dated: 06.02.2019 1




UHB Response to Conclusion 1

Following publication of the Wales Audit Office report, a full report was received at the UHB’s Board meeting on 27 July 2017 and discussion conducted in the
public session of that meeting. In addition, the report has been raised at the meetings of our Management Executive (ME) and Health Systems Management
Board (HSMB), and discussed with Senior Trade Union / Staff Side representatives and at our Local Partnership Forum (LPF).

As acknowledged by the Wales Audit Office, the UHB has a number of detailed policies and procedures covering this area. These have been developed to
standardise processes based on best procurement practice and set out the governing principles for public procurement, for example, the Scheme of Delegation,
Standing Orders, Standing Financial Instructions and Financial Control Procedures. Regrettably, these processes were not followed on this occasion, and there
was no reference to the UHB’s Head of Procurement as provided for in our Scheme of Delegation.

The Procurement Guide for Staff which was developed in conjunction with NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership Procurement Services, and approved through
the All Wales Directors of Finance Sub Group in 2015, is provided to UHB staff as part of the training delivered by the UHB Procurement Department and will be
further reinforced throughout the UHB.

Prior to the Wales Audit Office report, a review of our processes was already in train in response to changes to the IR35 legislation® relating to off-payroll working in
the public sector. In addition, the process around requesting approval of contracts has been changed, a procurement checklist that sets out a defined approval
hierarchy has been implemented to ensure compliance with Standing Orders and EC Regulations and that more than one signatory is obtained. All external
Consultancy contracts are now signed off by the CEO.

T

Th&UHB, in conjunction with its colleagues in Procurement and Human Resources / Workforce, has developed this action plan to make the necessary further

im&evements to ensure no similar incidents of this kind occur in the future. The Action Plan will be presented to the UHB Board on 28 September 2017 and its

Audg Committee on 26 September 2017 and will thereafter be monitored by the Audit Committee. The Action Plan has also been shared with Wales Audit Office.
Q

6T 9b

1 Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC) introduced the ‘intermediaries legislation’ commonly known as IR350r off-payroll rules in April 2000. This legislation is
intended to combat tax abuse by an individual who would be treated as an employee were it not for the fact that they provide their services via their own company, called
‘disguised employees’ by HMRC. From April 2017, where a public sector organisation engages an off-payroll worker through their own limited company, that organisation
will become responsible for determining whether the rules should apply, and, if so, for paying the right tax and National Insurance Contributions.

Dated: 06.02.2019 2




Conclusion 1 Action Plan Lead Completion Update Status
Training
1. Provide training for all Board members on the law, rules and Director of Aug 2017 Complete
regulations relating to employment and procurement at the August | Corporate Training delivered on 31/08/17.
Board Development Day. Governance
2. Cascade the training provided at Clinical Board senior management | Executive and Oct 2017 Complete
teams and throughout the organisation to Directorate Management | Clinical Board Discussed at ME on 04/09/17
level. Directors & cascaded.
Review
3. Undertake review of external consultancy categories in the Head of Aug 2017 Complete
purchase to pay system for period 2014-2017 to ensure compliance | Procurement Reports received by CEO and
with procurement rules. Director of Finance.
4. Review the Procurement Guide for Staff and revise to reflect Head of Sep 2017 Complete
process changes connected with the IR35 legislation. Procurement
Process
©. Provide the Procurement Guide for Staff to the Management Director of Sep 2017 Complete
% Executive Team meeting for cascading to Clinical Boards, and Finance Approved by ME on 25/09/17
A Corporate Departments.
;§. Publish the Procurement Guide for Staff across the UHB and place | Director of Oct 2017 Complete
@ onintranet and internet for ease of staff access. Corporate
iD\ Governance
&@. Implement a no purchase order, no payment system to prevent the | Head of June 2018 Complete
processing of manual payments. Procurement (original date set The NHS Wales Shared
was Mar 2018) Services Partnership have
been working with Health
Boards to implement an all
Wales no purchase order no
pay policy. Initially
implemented from June 2018
and fully adopted form
September 2018.
8. Develop and cascade process guidance for off-payroll working. Head of Aug 2017 Complete
Procurement Approved by ME on 14/08/17,

taken to HSMB on 17/08/17 for
cascading by Clinical Board
Directors.

Dated: 06.02.2019




Conclusion 2 - The way in which an HR consultancy contract was awarded to RKC Associates in February 2016, along with the actions of key decision-
makers, compromised the integrity of the procurement process

a) The UHB embarked upon a procurement process for a contract and invited and evaluated tenders for that contract, despite the fact that RKC Associates had
been engaged in advance of the tender process.

b) The robustness and integrity of the advertised procurement process was compromised in several key respects and the UHB’s Chief Operating Officer
participated in the process despite knowing that RKC Associates had already been engaged in advance of the procurement process commencing.

¢) The Procurement Department failed to keep adequate documentation of the procurement process.

d) The UHB delayed seeking formal written approval for the fixed-term appointment of a new Director of Workforce and Organisational Development, resulting in
the UHB incurring unnecessary expenditure on a consultancy contract.

UHB Response to Conclusion 2
The UHB has taken steps to strengthen its existing processes and extend training at all levels to reinforce the requirements in relation to these areas.

We recognise however that policies / procedures and training, whilst the foundation of good practice, are part of a bigger picture that includes a culture of sound
behaviours and values, adherence to the rules at all levels of the organization, checks to ensure this is happening and an environment that enables individuals to
condidently highlight departure from any rules no matter how senior those involved. As part of the communication with the UHB following receipt of this report, the
CED has asked staff to share any concerns they may have with him and provided assurance that anything raised will be explored to provide reassurance regarding
ourssystems / processes and decisions made.

U
Pr@urement compliance reports are already presented to the UHB’s Audit Committee outlining for example Contract Extensions and Single Quotation or Single
Temler Actions. Steps are also being taken to put in place more vigorous checks around our processes to flag potential issues and to achieve more robust
ove%ﬁight and business scrutiny by our Management Executive Team, Board and its Committees.

We are committed to utilising temporary employment contracts rather than consultancy contracts wherever possible.

Dated: 06.02.2019 4




Conclusion 2 Action Plan Lead Completion Update Status
Training
1. Develop and deliver an enhanced training programme for Head of Sep 2017 Complete
procurement staff focusing on the conclusions of the Wales Audit Procurement All training complete, refresher
Office report. sessions will continue.
2. Obtain quality management accreditation for the Procurement Head of Mar 2018 Complete
Department in respect of its tendering processes. Procurement (original date Audit took place 15/02/18 & full ISO
set was Nov Accreditation awarded with no
2017) findings of non-compliance.
3. Develop a Procurement flowchart for use by Board and Senior Head of Oct 2017 Complete
Managers. Procurement Flowchart considered by ME on
11/12/17 & agreed that Executives
will cascade through Management
Structures.
Audit
. Enhance existing audit processes within the Procurement Head of Sep 2017 Complete
% Department to verify compliance with contract procedure. Procurement Forward programme for audit
~ planned & training of Clinical Boards
U & departments to continue.
@. Review Internal Audit Programme to include audits relevant to the Director of Nov 2017 Complete
@ jssues highlighted in this report and to test compliance with new Finance (original date Specific audit included in 2018 plan,
ﬁ processes. set was Sep to look at overall progress of action
2017) plan & review in detail a sample of
actions.
Assurance
6. Enhance the statutory compliance report provided at each Audit Directors of Sep 2017 Complete
Committee to include our compliance with and exceptions to Finance and Standing agenda item with first
recruitment requirements, Standing Orders and Standing Financial Workforce and report received at Audit Committee
Instructions. Organisational on 26/09/17.
Development
7. Review the Terms of Reference for the Remuneration and Terms of Director of Jan 2018 Complete
Service Committee to include a requirement to report any Executive Corporate (original date Review approved by Board on
level secondments and Consultancy appointments for approval to this | Governance set was Oct 30/11/17. Amendment made to note
Committee. 2017) at the next meeting of the

Remuneration and Terms of Service
Committee.

Dated: 06.02.2019




Conclusion 3 - The process followed by the UHB that led to the appointment of the owner of RKC Associates to the position of Director of Workforce
and Organisational Development in April 2016 was fundamentally compromised, lacked transparency and was poorly documented.

a) lItis unclear why the UHB decided to proceed with a recruitment process for a Board level position with only a single candidate who had not applied for the
position when it was originally advertised.

b) The recruitment process was poorly documented and, as a consequence, it is not clear when the person who had been overseeing the recruitment exercise
became a candidate.

¢) The integrity of the recruitment process was compromised because the sole candidate had access to some of the assessment questions in advance of being
interviewed for the position.

d) The information provided to the Board and its Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee regarding the appointment was inaccurate, incomplete and
inconsistent.

UHB Response to Conclusion 3

High level appointments are not as frequent as other positions within the UHB and are often challenging to recruit due to small numbers of applicants with the
relevant skills and experience.

As ggresult of this report, the UHB has looked at how these senior appointment processes are conducted and how the office of the Chief Executive and Director of
Wd%kforce and Organisational Development can work better together to ensure compliance with processes and that satisfactory documentation is maintained.

~
Wemlso recognise that we can better support our Independent Board Members in relation to their Committee roles, to equip them to confidently scrutinise
de@ions and hold us to account.

@

N
w

Dated: 06.02.2019 6




Conclusion 3 Action Plan Lead Completion Update Status
Review
1. Review the procedures used to recruit Executive Directors and other | Assistant June 2018 Complete
Senior Managers. Director of (target date set | Relevant documents have been
Workforce and Jul 2017) revised and approved by the UHB’s
Organisational Strategy and Delivery Committee on
Development 28" June 2018.
2. Review the quality of information and its presentation to the Chair and Mar 2018 Complete
Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee. Director of (target date set | New process introduced in January
Corporate Sep 2017) 2018 whereby all papers are
Governance assured by Chair & Director of
Corporate Governance prior to
publication. Checklist formulated to
support this scrutiny.
Progess
%. Revise the Executive recruitment process to include a clear defined Chief Executive | Aug 2017 Complete
X~ role for the Director of Workforce and Organisational Development Process revised & now to be
U which can be delegated to their Deputy or Director of Corporate reflected in the updated Recruitment
% Governance if circumstances require or a conflict arises. and Selection Policy & Procedure.
Trdling
4. Arrange training for Independent Board Members, including those Director of Aug 2017 Complete
sitting on the Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee, Corporate Included in the programme for the
covering their roles and responsibilities. This should also provide Governance August Board Development Day.
them with example questions they may wish to ask and the minimum
information they may require to assist them in discharging their role.
5. Provide legal and governance training for all Board members on their | Director of Oct 2017 Complete
roles and responsibilities at the October Board Development Day. Corporate Included in the programme for the
Governance October Board Development Day.

Additional Improvements

Dated: 06.02.2019




Action Plan Lead Completion Update Status
Whistleblowing
1. Review current Procedure for NHS Staff to Raise Concerns which Director of Jan 2018 Complete
includes whistleblowing to ensure it is fit for purpose and easy for Workforce and (target date set | All Wales Procedure adopted,
staff to raise any concerns regarding non-compliance. Organisational Oct 2017) Working Group established to re-
Development launch Procedure, agree underlying
process & improve culture.
2. Develop an internal protocol providing a system for senior leaders to | Director of October 2018 | Complete
raise concerns, with clear lines of reporting should a concern relate to | Corporate (target date set | Raising concerns was launched
the Chair, Vice Chair or Chief Executive. Governance Oct 2017) during the week 22-26 October
along with communications from the
CEO and an animation played
throughout the UHB
Governance and Accountability Framework
3. Revise the UHB Governance and Accountability Framework to reflect | Director of March 2019 Complete
any amendments by the Directors of Finance All Wales Group to the | Corporate (target date set | Model Standing Orders reviewed
Standing Financial Instructions and Standing Orders. Governance Mar 2018) and being presented to the Board on
31°% March 2019 for approval
4. Review and revise the UHB’s Scheme of Delegation. Director of Feb 2018 Complete
o Finance (target date set | Review presented to Audit
% Oct 2017) Committee on 27/02/18 & Scheme of
~ Delegation revised to include off-
) payroll working.
&. Circulate a bulletin to the UHB Board and throughout the UHB Directors of Feb 2019 Complete
@ reinforcing the Nolan principles of Good Governance and duties of Corporate (target date set | Nolan Principles added permanently
E probity / candour and the Values and Standards of Behaviour Governance and | Oct 2017) to website for all Board Members to
Framework. Communications access
Communication
6. Communicate openly and transparently with staff about the findings Chief Executive | Oct 2017 Complete

of this report, the actions being taken by the UHB and their progress.
This will include public meetings of Board / Audit Committee and
meetings of LPF, Clinical Board Directors, HSMB and publishing of
the action plan on the intranet for access by all staff, supplemented
by other communication bulletins.

and Chair

Reports at Board, ME, HSMB, LPF.
Continued dialogue with Senior
Trade Union / Staff Side
representatives, CEO
communication placed on intranet
and internet. Action plan monitored
by Audit Committee.

Dated: 06.02.2019




Ag en d a Ite m 3 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 26



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee

PAC(5)-05-19 P1

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Review of the National Procurement Service and Value Wales
Introduction

The review of the National Procurement Service (NPS) and Value Wales was
announced in September 2017 by the Cabinet Secretary for Finance.

The review sought to develop organisational proposals for using the public sector’s
£6bn annual procurement spend to maximise the economic, social, environmental
and cultural well-being of future generations across Wales.

The review was taken forward in collaboration with public sector, business and
social partners to further evolve the NPS and Value Wales into service models
which address stakeholders’ current and future requirements.

The conclusion of the review was announced on 5 September 2018 by the Cabinet
Secretary for Finance who also wrote to the Chair of the Public Accounts
Committee (PAC) to provide an update on the Written Statement (Annex 1) and the
work undertaken to reflect how the review sought to respond to matters discussed
on 5 March 2018 at the PAC Session.

Findings from the Review

The Welsh Government established a small team to manage and coordinate the
review process. The review team was led by a Deputy Director independent of the
procurement function. This arrangement was welcomed by stakeholders.

Draft terms of reference were developed by Welsh Government and shared with
interested stakeholders. Stakeholders were asked to nominate representatives to
work with Welsh Government to deliver the review. A range of officers from across
the Local Government, NHS Wales, Higher Education, Police and Fire and Rescue
sectors engaged in the review process. In addition, the Federation of Small
Businesses Cymru and the Future Generations Commissioner participated in the
review.

A Welsh Government Oversight Board monitored progress of the review. External
engagement was secured via a Stakeholder Group. At the first Stakeholder Group
meeting members proposed that the detailed work should be taken forward by a
Delivery Group comprising procurement practitioners and specialists from key
categories such as social care and construction, to take the work forward to develop
the proposals, with the Stakeholder Group retaining an overview role.

Stakeholders quickly clarified that the original premise of achieving savings through
the NPS was no longer, in their view, the overriding priority and that different
delivery approaches were required to deliver against national wellbeing goals.

Pack Page 50



2.5

2.6

To enable stakeholders to engage fully, Welsh Government provided the secretariat
for the review, providing the data, information and resource to enable options to be
explored.

The review gathered candid insight from stakeholders who engaged with the review
with regard to their perceptions of the NPS and Value Wales:

It became evident through the course of the review that refocusing the NPS
and Value Wales was not what key stakeholders wanted;

There was considerable strength of feeling amongst most stakeholders in
respect of the NPS. Issues including relationship management and service
delivery prior to the review had negatively impacted on the level of positive
engagement with the service;

Many stakeholders considered that the NPS had gone beyond its original
brief, had introduced ‘scope creep’ in order to maximise levy and had also
become an agent of Welsh Government rather than the independent body as
defined in the original business case;

Some stakeholders believed that the NPS had not succeeded as it had not
delivered the benefits set out in the original business case;

There was strong consensus regarding the positioning of Value Wales. Most
stakeholders wished to see Value Wales removed from the NPS structure to
manage perceived conflicts of interest and ensure clearer accountability;
Stakeholder requirements of Value Wales included development of new
national procurement policy and delivery support and capability and capacity
building, especially in foundation sector areas such as social care and
construction;

Some stakeholders felt that imperatives had changed since the NPS was
established. The demand for national contracts appeared to be limited only
to those areas where Wales-wide contracts would yield an optimum level of
value;

Most stakeholders indicated that national contracts which did not deliver
distinctly different Welsh policy or provide no additional value to Wales
should not duplicate Crown Commercial Services (CCS), or other UK-wide
contracts;

Some stakeholders favoured more regional and local approaches to
procurement, whereas others felt national approaches were still important;
Work to develop procurement professionalism across the public sector would
be beneficial to help stakeholders grow capability, capacity and enable
organisations to retain their skilled workforce;

Customers sought assurance that a future digital procurement strategy would
complement policy development and capability building programmes. Digital
procurement was outlined as being integral to collaboration, could simplify
access for suppliers and provide the data and intelligence to inform future
policy and decision making; and

Pack Page 51



3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

e To drive up involvement of indigenous businesses in procurement, many
stakeholders called for more coordinated support to fill business supply voids
and to increase the capability of cooperatives and mutuals and the voluntary
sector to deliver public contracts and services.

Internal Assurance

The Senior Responsible Officer for the review programme instigated internal
assurance mechanisms, at various points in the review process, including a
Gateway review.

These mechanisms confirmed there was limited mileage in seeking to refocus the
current NPS structure. Stakeholders requested continuation of NPS work which was
valued, with the remainder of the agreements being run down.

Due to the outcome of the review, which was not intended to produce a detailed
implementation plan, no formal report containing recommendations was compiled.

Written Statement

Stakeholder insight captured during the process reinforced the need for the
procurement review. This feedback informed the proposed new direction set out in
the Written Statement, issued on 5 September by the Cabinet Secretary for
Finance, attached at Annex 1.

Better and more detailed understanding will be developed of the £6bn annual
procurement expenditure to identify future trends and opportunities so that delivery
of added value, such as employment and training through community benefits is
maximised. Greater synergy with the Wales Infrastructure Investment Plan will help
realise these opportunities.

The statement clarified that the NPS will transition to a smaller contracting unit
which will oversee delivery and management of a reduced portfolio of national
contracts. This reduced portfolio will capture those agreements which deliver
optimum national value for a significant proportion of the public sector and will not
compromise regional or local wellbeing priorities.

Plans to transition to a smaller contracting unit are being developed and, to
minimise any potential disruption, will be taken forward over the coming months in
conjunction with customers and suppliers.

Closer engagement with the CCS and other public buying organisations, will enable
the Welsh public sector to fully engage in UK wide solutions for which there is no
benefit in implementing national agreements in Wales.

A new national policy development and delivery function will be established to
operate separately from a smaller national contracting function. This will avoid any
conflicts of interest, perceived or otherwise.

Pack Page 52



4.7

4.8

4.9

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

The policy development function will lead on engaging stakeholders with strategic
influence to shape a future collaborative procurement strategy which recognises
and enables public bodies to deliver national, regional and local priorities through
procurement, in line with the Wellbeing of Future Generations goals.

Policy delivery support will include focus on building procurement capability in the
key foundation sectors of construction and social care.

A new, broader approach to growing procurement capability and professionalism
will be established in collaboration with stakeholders across the public service. This
capability programme will enable public bodies to work together more effectively
and deliver a pipeline of future talent to help mitigate the impact of pay differentials
across the Welsh public sector.

Public Accounts Committee Inquiry into Procurement

During the Public Accounts Committee’s work on procurement earlier this year, a
range of considerations were discussed, including capacity and capability building;
NPS engagement and pipeline; and strategic alignment.

The review clarified a number of current and future capability building priorities and
opportunities. This information will inform the development of a new procurement
skills and procurement fitness check programme which will be developed
collaboratively and support delivery of the future procurement strategy.

In the meantime, work has been progressed to provide resources which enable the
public sector to identify decarbonisation priorities and to capture and record wider
wellbeing goals as part of the community benefits approach. A Decarbonisation
Dashboard has been developed to enable the carbon emissions associated with
different categories of spend to be base-lined and measured. This work will identify
high carbon emitting categories for further analysis and will help inform
development of decarbonisation guidance, tools and delivery support for the wider
public sector across Wales.

Further to the Written Statement, stakeholders, businesses and social partners will
be engaged to undertake a review of the NPS contract pipeline. This work will
shape the future, reduced portfolio of national contracts.

It is recognised that the potential of procurement will need to be realised through
alignment with strategic policy. The future direction of travel must be informed by
the objectives of the Economic Action Plan, the goals set by the decarbonisation
goals and findings of the Fair Work Commission.

The approach to the in-depth examination of public funds is being developed. The
future procurement programme will be aligned to this wider strategic review.

Pack Page 53



6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

8.3

Wales Audit Office Recommendations

Through the review process and business-as-usual activity across Welsh
Government functions, several recommendations from the reports into procurement
published by the Wales Audit Office (WAO) in 2017 have been completed. The
current status of the recommendations is outlined in Annex 2.

The Written Statement announced a new direction for the NPS and Value Wales
teams. Therefore, it is proposed that those recommendations which are still in
progress be closed as events have effectively overtaken them. They would,
however, help shape the detail of the future procurement programme which we will
develop in dialogue with the WAO.

First Minister Manifesto

The First Minister’s leadership manifesto contained a number of commitments
relating to procurement, including development of capability; utilising flexibilities in
procurement rules; further growing the involvement of Welsh and using the power of
procurement to secure better, broader outcomes for the people and public services
of Wales.

These commitments are informing the development of the future procurement
plans, which are being taken forward at a pace which allows full engagement with
key stakeholders, avoiding the risk of over-promising on timescales.

Next Steps

Plans are being progressed to transition the NPS to a smaller national contracting
unit and to establish a policy development and delivery unit.

When this initial work is completed, interested and experienced stakeholders
(including practitioners) will be engaged to develop the detail and approach to
delivering wider future procurement strategy. The office of the Future Generations
Commissioner is involved in the process, providing helpful perspective on the
approaches being developed.

The potential impact of Brexit is acknowledged and initial risks and opportunities
have been identified. Close working relationships with the UK Government have
been established and these will be maintained as the full effect of Brexit becomes
better understood.

Pack Page 54



NI
s

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

WRITTEN STATEMENT
BY
THE WELSH GOVERNMENT

TITLE Review of the National Procurement Service and Value Wales
DATE September 2018

BY Mark Drakeford AM, Cabinet Secretary for Finance

Last September, | announced a review of the work of the National Procurement Service
(NPS) and Value Wales. This statement details the results of the review and the next steps.

The review was designed to clarify stakeholders’ priorities to help maximise the value of the
£6bn annual procurement expenditure across Wales at a time of unprecedented pressures
on public services and as the UK prepares to leave the European Union.

Since announcing the review, the National Assembly’s Public Accounts Committee
launched its own inquiry into procurement, which | have followed with interest. | will write to
the chair of the committee to explain how the review of NPS and Value Wales has sought to
respond to commitments made during the inquiry and to a statement about public
procurement by the committee’s chair in Plenary on 2 May.

A range of stakeholders, including public sector leaders, procurement officers, businesses
and the Future Generations Commissioner have taken part in the review.

They have told us that simply refocusing NPS and Value Wales is not enough. The review
has revealed the need for an in-depth examination of how we use public funding to support
public service delivery and to build economic growth across all regions of Wales.

Through the review process, stakeholders have confirmed a number of future priority
actions for procurement, including:

e greater focus on delivering collaborative procurement agreements aligned to regional
and local priorities. Such an approach will not only afford maximum access to Welsh
suppliers, it will also complement the aims set out in the Economic Action Plan, the
decarbonisation programme and support our drive to make Wales a Fair Work nation

by leveraging fair work outcomes from public spending and procurement practice;
Pack Ii’age 55



e delivery of a smaller number of national contracts where Wales-wide solutions, in
areas such as vehicles and fleet hire, provide the greatest value for a large
proportion of the Welsh public sector; and

e explore with the UK Government how we might strengthen our relationship with the
Crown Commercial Service in order for Wales to fully engage in UK-wide contracts in
areas where we do not have a distinctly different Welsh policy.

Going forward, this approach will be informed by a national policy development and delivery
support function.

We will work closely with stakeholders to develop a new procurement strategy, which
clarifies the future operating model and enables the full value of procurement to be realised
nationally, regionally and locally.

Stakeholders have advised that this national policy approach should aim to deliver new
support in social care and construction, driving up consistency and capability in the
commissioning and procurement of these vital areas of public service delivery.

Effective deployment of procurement must be underpinned by a skills development
programme. A new capability and capacity programme will therefore be drawn up to equip
procurement officers with modern commercial techniques and create a future talent pipeline
to help tackle skill shortages and gaps created by different pay and rewards structures.

Stakeholders have also been clear about the need for a progressive future digital
procurement strategy to underpin collaboration, simplify access for suppliers and provide
the data and intelligence to inform future policy and decision making. We will work with our
customers and stakeholders to develop this.

To support these requirements, | am therefore announcing that the NPS in its current form
will be closed. It is clear that delivering a high volume of national frameworks is no longer a
priority for customers and this is reflected by the level of engagement with NPS frameworks
which falls short of the business case forecast.

A smaller operation will be established which will manage a reduced portfolio of national
contracts, where such agreements can demonstrate delivery of value across a significant
majority of Welsh public sector organisations.

None of the NPS team will lose their job as a result of its closure. The NPS team will be
consulted and engaged in developing the way forward and those not part of the smaller
national contracting function will be offered opportunity to be involved in delivery of regional
and local priorities, the national policy development and delivery support unit or the Welsh

Pack Page 526



Government’s own inward facing Commercial and Procurement programme, or other similar
activities.

Evidence gathered through the review has informed the need for our future procurement
policy and national/regional collaborative procurement programmes to be managed and
delivered separately as key elements of a strategic, cross-cutting collaborative programme
of work, which has greater emphasis on driving up community wealth-building across
Wales.

Our aim is to maximise procurement spend in Wales while also using the £6bn annual
procurement spend to support sustainable jobs and growth; fair work and employment
practices; infrastructure and construction investment; use of public assets and improve the
resilience of local businesses and their communities.

The feedback from the review has been clear that we must also work to provide a clear link
between procurement and the wellbeing goals of public bodies across Wales and ensure
the supply base can better engage in public procurement.

My officials will work collaboratively with public sector partners to develop plans to move this
work forward.

This statement is being issued during recess in order to keep Assembly Members and the

industry informed. Should Assembly Members wish me to make a further statement or to
answer questions on this when the Assembly returns | would be happy to do so.

Pack Izage 57



Wales Office Report — Public Procurement in Wales

Annex 2

AGW Report | Recommendation | Target date | Progress update Proposed action
Title
Public R1 We recommend Welsh Government will review its guidance for engagement with | RECOMMENDATION CLOSED
Procurement | that the Welsh the spend analysis project and emphasise to participating
in Wales Government: organisations the importance of verifying the accuracy of the data
encourage public provided.
bodies to review
the accuracy of the The 2017-18 spend analysis exercise is already underway. An
data that they invitation has been extended to the Further Education sector to
provide for the participate in the exercise. Engagement with the sector will be
Collaborative organised to clarify the opportunities for colleges to benefit from
- Spend Analysis the data analysis exercise. Opportunities for engaging Welsh
Q project, reflecting Government sponsored bodies in the exercise will be explored.
9— on the issues
o identified in the As part of the ongoing work with the Spend Analysis service
g course of our work; provider and further development of the associated work a
) and explore with number of actions and steps have been taken which address
83 the further recommendation 1.

education sector
and the missing
Welsh Government
sponsored bodies
why they will not
engage with the
Collaborative
Spend Analysis
project,

Work has been underway from June 17 and September 17
between the service provider (Atamis) who have contacted all
member organisations. The aim of this work was to:

Enhance and improve engagement and understanding of the
benefits of the spend analysis system.

Inform and advise end users again of the Atamis system and
discuss with them new and extended features.

Discuss and complete data validation work on behalf of the
member organisations.

Maintain and provide access to improved frequency of
submission of data to Atamis for upload to their local and the
NPS regional system.

This was achieved by inviting each participating organisation to a




Annex 2

65 abed yoed

preliminary webinar intended to provide training on new features,
validation of data, and bespoke customisation of their system
where requested.

In conjunction with this exercise, the service provider conducted
a variety of procedures in order to improve the quality and extent
of classification of data in the local organisation systems, with
efforts made to engage member organisations to ensure that
classifications aligned with each organisations understanding of
their data.

exercises via automated mapping from Companies House Data
and manual research/verification.

The work completed to date has supported activity which has
seen an increased proportion of classified spend within the NPS
regional system. In particular, significant improvements for the
level of classification detail available across key sectors. The
overall result has achieved a 2% reduction in unmapped spend
to the level of spend classified in the system. The proportion of
spend classified has increased from 96.5% to 98.5% for financial
year 2016/17.

In relation to F.E. and WGSB and in order to improve the level of
engagement data provision and classification for the WGSB and
FE sectors; there are a number of actions currently being
progressed ready for early 2018.

a. Firstly, a simplified guidance document which uses FE and
WGSB-specific terminology will be produced with a view to
encourage a higher participation level.

b. Secondly, the service provider are willing to consider
additional site visits and group training sessions, in an effort to
re-engage with those organisations who have not yet
participated.

c. This will also be used to understand fully why certain
organisations did not participate previously and provide any
lessons learned for future engagement.




Annex 2

d. The Welsh Government will also be contacting each
organisation directly in the New Year to increase engagement
and buy-in

Public R2 — accountability e A Written Statement was issued by the Cabinet Secretary for | Proposal:
Procurement | and governance Finance concluding the Review of the National Procurement | As part of the future policy
in Wales structure for public | 30" June Service and Value Wales on 5" September 2018. development and delivery support
procurement in 2018 e The Statement confirms a national policy developmentand | function, governance arrangements /
Wales to be set out delivery support function will progress future work, including | representation will be determined
on website. establishing new accountability and governance which will be | and made available electronically.
WGSB,0FGC, and published on the internet.
other NW public Ensure the new body publicises its
o bodies governance arrangements on its
% representative in website and provides
=~ merger plans. comprehensive representation for all
o relevant stakeholders.
S Lead — Jonathan
) Hopkins
blic R3 — Encourage e As above - A Written Statement was issued by the Cabinet Proposal.
rocurement | Public bodies to 31% October Secretary for Finance concluding the Review of the National | As part of the work with stakeholders
in Wales review 2018 Procurement Service and Value Wales on 5th September to develop a new procurement
procurement 2018. strategy for Wales, public bodies will
strategies and e Paragraph 11 of the Written Statement confirms that we will | be supported to review existing
policies on annual work closely with stakeholders to develop a new procurement | strategies to ensure wider legislative
basis to ensure strategy, which clarifies the future operating model and changes are reflected.
they reflect wider enables the full value of procurement to be realised
legislative nationally, regionally and locally.
changes.
Lead — Jonathan
Hopkins
Public R4 — ensure e As above - A Written Statement was issued by the Cabinet Proposal:
Procurement | Procurement 31%' October Secretary for Finance concluding the Review of the National As part of the new capability and
in Wales Fitness Checks 2018 Procurement Service and Value Wales on 5th September capacity function for skills
undertaken 2018. development, procurement fithess




Annex 2

consistently for
effective
benchmarking.

Provide guidance
for follow up
assessments.

Work to analyse
results to support
further
improvement

Asses where public

Paragraph 12 states that stakeholders have advised that this
national policy approach should aim to deliver new support in
social care and construction, driving up consistency and
capability in commissioning and procurement of these vital
areas of public service delivery.

A national policy development and delivery support function
will progress future work. A new capability and capacity
function will be drawn up in collaboration with stakeholders to
equip procurement officers with commercial techniques and
create a future talent pipeline to help tackle skills shortages
and gaps created by different pay and reward structures.

checks and procurement maturity
assessments are likely to be rolled
out.

Guidance will be provided for follow
up assessments

Results to be analysed to support
further improvement.

The existing WPPS is likely to be
updated when the new strategy for
Wales is developed.

bodies are in
relation to the
o WPPS for example
Q McClelland (one
Q professional per
T £10m spend)
o))
% Lead — Jonathan
o Hopkins
=
Public R5 — Community o Completed. Recommendation overtaken and we
Procurement | Benefits toolkit 30" June e Community Benefits Toolkit is now updated to reflect WFG proposes to close, in discussion with
in Wales updated taking 2018 and wider social value. Engagement with community of best | WAO.

account of WFG
and learning from
best practice using
community benefit
champions.

Lead — Jonathan
Hopkins

practice / piloting taking place.




Annex 2

Public R6 — explore e A Written Statement was issued by the Cabinet Secretary for | Proposal:

Procurement | impact of 31% October Finance concluding the Review of the National Procurement | Wider work will create a future talent

in Wales differential pay for | 2018 Service and Value Wales on 5th September 2018. pipeline to help tackle skills
procurement staff This recommendation will take place as part of wider work to | shortages and gaps created by
and potential take forward the contents of the Statement as a whole. different pay and reward structures.
solutions.

Lead — Jonathan

Hopkins

Public R7 — Promote use e Complete (New ESPD also available on Sell 2 Wales, Complete.

Procurement | of SQuID-and 30" April supplier selection guidance has been produced to SQuID is superseded by the

in Wales assess use as part | 2018 accompany it). Its use as part of PFC will be undertaken in European Single Document (ESPD)
of procurement line with R4 above. now in place across Wales , built into
fitness checks. Sell2Wales.

Proposal:

Lead — Jonathan Procurement maturity will be
Hopkins assessed as part of the capability

work plan developed. See narrative
above for R4

9 abed »oed

4
v

d



Wales Audit Office Report — National Procurement Service

Annex 2

AGW Recommendation Target date | Status Proposed Action
Report Title
National R1 3ot As the Written Statement confirms
Procurement e |dentify reasons September e A Written Statement was issued by the Cabinet that the NPS will, over time, cease
Service members choose to 2018 Secretary for Finance concluding the Review of to exist in its current form, it is
use local or public the National Procurement Service and Value proposed that these
purchase Wales on 5th September 2018. The Statement recommendations have now been
organisations. confirms that the NPS will, over time, cease to overtaken by the Written Statement
e Develop action plan for exist in its current form. but will be considered as part of
articulating benefits of e The Written Statement confirms that a smaller developing the way forward.
NPS operation will be set up to manage a reduced
o Examine whether portfolio of contracts. Proposal:
frameworks and e Engagement is underway with NPS stakeholders | Ensure the new smaller operation
contracts can give to support the transition of the service. incorporates the themes of
T more commitment to e NPS customers have been consulted to establish | fecommendation 1 (as appropriate)
?_.3 volumes and measure new approaches to communications, improved as it is developed.
= appetite to develop access to NPS agreements and development of
o joint specifications — case studies setting out the benefits of using NPS
g Explore possibilities or agreements. Advantages of using the NPS
D more regional agreements are now articulated on the website
8 frameworks to and delivered through simpler messaging.
increase opportunities
for SME’s — work will
follow
Survey members and
non members on
annual basis to
evaluate service
Lead — Jonathan Hopkins
R 2 — Review opt out process | 315 March e The opt out process has been discussed with Proposal:
to ensure clear and 2018 customer organisations as part of each Ensure the new smaller operation

consistent.

Lead — Jonathan Hopkins

framework. Through improved understanding of
customer requirements, a more flexible, informal
opt out approach has been in operation.

incorporates the themes of
recommendation 2 (as appropriate)
as it is developed.




Annex 2

A Written Statement was issued by the Cabinet
Secretary for Finance concluding the Review of
the National Procurement Service and Value
Wales on 5th September 2018. The Statement
confirms that the NPS will, over time, cease to
exist in its current form.

R 3 — agree a sustainable
funding mechanism to place
NPS on a sound financial
footing.

Lead — Marion Stapleton

3oth
September
2018

A Written Statement was issued by the Cabinet
Secretary for Finance concluding the Review of
the National Procurement Service and Value
Wales on 5" September 2018. The Statement
confirms that the NPS will, over time, cease to

Proposal:

Ensure the new smaller operation
incorporates the themes of
recommendation 3 (as appropriate)
as it is developed.

aware of provisions via
reporting channels to support
SME'’s.

Lead — Jonathan Hopkins

Secretary for Finance concluding the Review of
the National Procurement Service and Value
Wales on 5th September 2018. The Statement
confirms that the NPS will, over time, cease to
exist in its current form.

9-? exist in its current form.
;3_
Y,
8 R 4 — annual reports: include | 31%" January Recommendation achieved. Complete
@ a summary of actual spend 2018 A Written Statement was issued by the Cabinet
g through NPS frameworks. Secretary for Finance concluding the Review of
the National Procurement Service and Value
Lead — Jonathan Hopkins Wales on 5th September 2018. The Statement
confirms that the NPS will, over time, cease to
exist in its current form.
R 5 — NPS make members On going A Written Statement was issued by the Cabinet Proposal:

Ensure the new smaller operation
incorporates the themes of
recommendation 5 (as appropriate)
as it is developed.




Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee
PAC(5)-05-19 P2

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales
9 November 2018

Dear Nick

Public Accounts Committee: further response to procurement inquiry

Many thanks for this further opportunity to contribute to the Public Accounts Committee inquiry into public
procurement. As | highlighted in my evidence to the Committee earlier this year, and in subsequent
discussions and correspondence with the Cabinet Secretary, | believe there is a significant opportunity to
transform the way procurement is undertaken in Wales to deliver much wider economic, social,
environmental and cultural benefits in line with the requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations
Act.

In my evidence to your Committee | highlighted a number of concerns but also suggested areas for
improvement including:

e aneed to clarify what outcomes procurement could deliver across the public sector in Wales by
looking through the lens of the Well-being of Future Generations Act, and | would expect these to be
included in the proposed five-year Programme for Procurement;

e The current Wales Procurement Policy Statement should be updated to reflect all four elements of
well-being;

e Using spend analysis to prioritise where procurement can deliver wider benefits / outcomes;

e Addressing the ongoing tension between lowest cost and achieving wider outcomes because value for
money (lowest price) is still seen as the key driver;

e Need for clearer leadership at all levels.

Following the Cabinet Secretary’s announcement of a review into the National Procurement Service and Value
Wales (back in September 2017) | was pleased to be involved in the Stakeholder Reference Group that was
established to support this review. The first meeting took place in February and the group met on a monthly
basis until June.

The review was initially focussing on the National Procurement Service and seeking the views of procurement
practitioners on what type of service they wish to see in the future; once this was done the review would
move on to consider the wider procurement landscape, what the vision for procurement is for the long-term
and Value Wales’ role to support implementation. Whilst | appreciate the need to deal with the uncertainty
around the future of the NPS | emphasised several times, both to Welsh Government officials and to the
Cabinet Secretary, how important it is to ensure that we take a root and branch look at procurement policy
in Wales as well as the infrastructure that supports it. | was concerned that focussing on the NPS model
before looking at the wider landscape risked creating another service which is not fit for purpose today or in
the long-term and therefore if it was felt essential to carry out this work first | sought assurance that further
work on the vision and strategic policy context for procurement would be undertaken very quickly afterwards,
and that any new arrangements for the NPS are sufficiently flexible in being able to respond and deliver
against this new vision.

Indeed, | welcome the Cabinet Secretary’s recognition of this; his statement on the outcome of the review
states that through involving stakeholders they have also highlighted that refocusing NPS and Value Wales is

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT

cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru col ta&fu atjos.wales
cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru fuﬁé aggﬁéﬁg


http://senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s71551/Inquiry%20into%20Public%20Procurement%20Response%20f%20rom%20Future%20Generations%20Commissioner%20for%20Wales.pdf

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

not enough and that there is a “need for an in-depth examination of how we use public funding to support
public service delivery and to build economic growth across all regions of Wales”

| have consistently emphasised the need for the Well-being of Future Generations Act to be the starting
point and overarching framework within which Welsh Government’s work (on developing the vision and new
delivery models) should be delivered. Although | felt the review was making progress, | still had some
concerns as outlined in a letter to the Cabinet Secretary (on the 19 June 2018). Whilst | welcomed references
to the Act in the review’s Terms of Reference - “The overarching objective of the Review is to develop
organisational proposals for using the publics sector’s £6bn annual procurement spend to maximise the
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of future generations in every part of Wales” - | felt
that further work was needed to ensure all those involved in the process had sufficient understanding of the
Act to make sure this will be delivered in reality. In terms of the outcome of the review | have yet to see clear
evidence of these proposals.

As you recognised in your statement on 2 May, with which | agree: “The Committee believe there is much to
be gained by maximising the potential of the annual £6 billion public sector procurement spend and by
transforming public procurement in the context of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. It
is clear to the Committee that this potential is some way from being realised fully for a number of reasons and
that some significant development work and consensus building is required to move forward in a
collaborative way and respond to some of the concerns that have been raised about the approach taken by
NPS to date.”

In developing a new procurement system that is fit for the future and delivers wider value it is important that
stakeholders outside of procurement and related professions are being engaged. We have encouraged Welsh
Government officials to seek wider engagement from outside the sector, and | have suggested bringing in
others with a different perspective. We have made a number of suggestions over the last few months
including bringing in external innovation and challenge, widening membership of the stakeholder group to
include economic/business development, skills, supply chain, innovation - areas where procurement can
demonstrate its potential to support wider organisational objectives. | feel there is a lot more that they could
do on this, and that wider engagement is critical to find innovative solutions.

There are also opportunities to learn from approaches elsewhere - e.g. Preston where they have increased
local spend by £200 million over six years - and see what could work here in Wales, whilst also having a
greater focus on the opportunities available through considering procurement as an investment opportunity
through the lens of the Act. | am pleased that following an introduction by my team Welsh Government are
now exploring a piece of work with Neil Mclnroy, Chief Executive of the Centre for Local Economic Strategies
(CLES) who was closely involved in the Preston work.

In his response to my letter the Cabinet Secretary confirmed that my concerns would be addressed as part of
the review, including raising awareness of the opportunity and benefits of looking at public procurement from
a different perspective following the Act’s five Ways of Working. | am aware that a wider strategic review of
procurement is now underway, and that Welsh Government are developing a new vision for procurement
that will be supported by an implementation plan. My team is aware of this work but have not yet been
involved in taking it forward. As a member of the Stakeholder group for the review | have not received any
formal communication to clarify the next steps following the review.

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT

cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@fut tieRs,wale.
cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futu regeneratitgﬁﬁgﬁ ?3 d/ é 6 9



Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

As the Cabinet Secretary’s statement on the review outlines, stakeholders have confirmed a number of future
priority actions for procurement including:

e Greater focus on delivering collaborative procurement agreements aligned to regional and local
priorities: | would agree with taking a collaborative and integrated approach, however we need to
ensure that all five ways of working are applied with a view to delivering local well-being objectives
(to maximise contribution to the seven national well-being goals);

e Delivery of a smaller number of national contracts where Wales-wide solutions, in areas such as
vehicles and fleet hire, provide the greatest value for a large proportion of the Welsh public sector:
again we need to ensure that national contracts seek to deliver wider well-being outcomes and
benefits;

e Exploring with the UK Government how we can strengthen our relationship with the Crown
Commercial Service, to fully engage where its work is aligned with Welsh needs and priorities: the
focus has to be on seeking to deliver wider benefits against all four pillars of well-being.

| welcome their commitment to work closely with stakeholders to develop a new procurement strategy,
which will “clarify the future operating model and enable the full value of procurement to be realised”. | am
aware that a series of stakeholder events were due to take place in July but were cancelled and have not yet
been rescheduled. They need to ensure that this engagement is comprehensive and meaningful, and also that
significant progress is made quickly to ensure that stakeholders continue to remain engaged. | will continue
to request that a much wider community of stakeholders are involved in this work going forward.

| welcome their proposal for a new capability and capacity programme to develop a skilled workforce — again
critical to ensure that understanding of the Well-being of Future Generations Act, and the wider benefits that
can be achieved through procurement, is a key component of this work. It is clear from my work across a
range of policy areas and sectors to date that simply revising policy and guidance is not enough. The
Government must allocate resources to embed awareness and understanding of new requirements and
support the capacity to change if we are to see a system which genuinely embeds the new ways of working
set out in the Act.

| agree with the conclusion that future procurement policy and collaborative procurement programmes
should have greater emphasis on driving up community wealth-building across Wales, “to support sustainable
jobs and growth; fair work and employment practices; infrastructure and construction investment; use of
public assets and improve the resilience of local businesses and their communities”. However | would point
out that it is essential that ALL of the aspirations of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act are embraced
and that policy does not focus solely on the economic benefits that can be driven from procurement without
considering social, environmental and cultural well-being too. | am still yet to see evidence of exactly how
Welsh Government are proposing to do this.

The statement concludes by saying “we must provide a clear link between procurement and the well-being
goals of public bodies across Wales”; | have been calling for the need to ensure procurement supports
delivery of the well-being objectives of public bodies (which in turn maximise contribution to the seven
national well-being goals) and will continue to work with Welsh Government to ensure this happens.

Through my office’s Art of the Possible programme, which seeks to set out a vision of what is possible for each
of the seven well-being goals, we have recently launched our “Simple Changes” which are practical ideas for

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT

cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru col ta&fu atieps wales
cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru fuﬁé afggﬁé:fﬁ



Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

Public Bodies to show how they are contributing to the goals. Procurement has emerged as a cross-cutting
theme across all seven goals, so in addition to the simple changes we will continue to develop a more
comprehensive Journey Checker, in partnership with stakeholders, to illustrate how Public Bodies can
progress so they are ‘leading the way’. Further information on the simple changes as well as case-studies is
available at: https://futuregenerations.wales/simple-changes/all-themes/procurement/

My team are also working with individual Public Bodies and Public Services Boards to support their efforts to
embed the Act into their procurement activities and will continue to engage with a wide range of stakeholders
on this agenda. Although | am frustrated by the lack of tangible progress over the last 12 months we will also
continue to provide support to Welsh Government to develop a procurement system which is fit for future
generations.

Yours sincerely

Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT

cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@fut tis e,
cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futu regeneratitgﬁﬁgs ﬁsg é 7 1


https://futuregenerations.wales/simple-changes/all-themes/procurement/

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee

Partneriaeth .05-
'QQD GIG Cydwasanaethau PAC(5)-05-19 P3

<) NHS | Shared Services
b Partnership

@: 01443 848550
Gofynnwch am / Ask for: Neil Frow
E-bost/Email: Neil.Frow@wales.nhs.uk
Dyddiad/Date: 9" November 2018

Mr Nick Ramsay AM
Chair

Public Accounts Committee

National Assembly for Wales

Dear Mr Ramsay,
PUBLIC PROCUREMENT

Thank you for your recent correspondence dated the 23 October, regarding the above
and in particular seeking the views of the NHS on the review findings announced in the

Cabinet Secretary for Finance Statement of the 5t September 2018.

I am happy to confirm that the Welsh NHS Procurement Service was one of a range of
stakeholders who had been asked by Welsh Government to contribute as part of the
review process and we are broadly content and supportive of the review findings

including the high level principles that have been set out in the statement.

Clearly, there is still a lot of detail that Welsh Government needs to work through with
stakeholders following the initial review especially in terms of the priority areas for
action and how these will be underpinned by a national policy development and delivery
support function. I think it is important to recognise that the public sector procurement
landscape is different across Wales with organisations and sectors at different points
and without this further detailed work it is difficult to comment on how this will

potentially directly impact NHS Procurement at either a strategic or operational level.

The statement also refers to officials working “collaboratively with public sector partners
to develop plans to move this work forward”. It is not clear how this is going to be taken
forward and it would be helpful to have a timeline in terms of the development of this

detail around the future operating model, the engagement approach and of particular

Pack Page 72



necessity is the agreement of an underpinning collaborative digital procurement
strategy as a number of central support systems are reaching the end of the current

contractual arrangements.

We fully support the idea of setting up a smaller operation to manage a reduced portfolio
of national contracts as going forward we believe there will still be a particular need for
a central mechanism to take advantage of collaborative working at a national level. For
those organisations that are using the existing NPS frameworks and contracts the
management of any transition period together with ensuring business continuity will be
an important area to monitor. An example of the “detail that needs to be worked
through” is there is still a question over what range of procurements will be covered
once NPS changes and although the statement refers to a focus on the delivery of
agreements to meet regional and local priorities it will be important that any lessons
learned and recommendations from the NPS review are taken into account during this

process.

We welcome any investment in helping support the wider skills and capabilities
challenge which all organisations face. Creating a future talent pipeline, sharing of best
practice and taking advantage of more collaborative procurements will be a key driver

in creating the required public procurement function of the future.

On a more general note given that a more collaborative approach to procurement within
NHS Wales through the NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership (NWSSP) has shown
significant benefits within the health sector it is disappointing that the introduction of
the NPS has not realised similar wider benefits for the Welsh public sector as a whole.
That said, we do recognise that the public procurement landscape across Wales is
different and that priorities of customers change over time and have ultimately been
reflected in the take up and use of the NPS.

We look forward to seeing the next stage of the work of the PAC in taking this forward.

Lxﬁfg-" 2. j,-rpl.f-xf

Neil Frow
Managing Director

NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership

Pack Page 73
Page 2 of 2



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee
PAC(5)-05-19 P4

CARDIFF

Cardiff Business School
PRIFYSGOL Ysgol Busnes Caerdydd
(AFRDY

Public Procurement in

Wales

FAO: Nick Ramsay, AM Public Accounts Committee
Dr Jane Lynch 18/11/18

Following the Public Accounts Committee inquiry, please find my responses below to the statement
published by the Cabinet Secretary 05/09/18.

The review was designed to clarify stakeholders’ priorities to help maximise the value of the
£6bn annual procurement expenditure across Wales at a time of unprecedented pressures
on public services and as the UK prepares to leave the European Union.

| am disappointed that the Gateway Report is not available due to the confidential and
sensitive nature of the evidence collected during the review period. This makes it difficult to
fully respond to the statement. The participant responses could have been coded to protect
anonymity but still enable access to information presented during the review period.

Since announcing the review, the National Assembly’s Public Accounts Committee launched
its own inquiry into procurement, which | have followed with interest. | have today written to
the chair of the committee setting out how this review has sought to respond to commitments
made during the inquiry and to a statement about public procurement in Plenary on 2 May.

It was not made clear why the National Assembly Public Accounts Committee was responsible
for this review. | expected a review of this scale and importance to be audited by a third party,
based outside of Wales.

They have told us that simply refocusing NPS and Value Wales is not enough. The review has
revealed the need for an in-depth examination of how we use public funding to support public
service delivery and to build economic growth across all regions of Wales.

I concur with this finding, though raise concerns about the timing of this and the length of time
a full examination will take all during this uncertain period as the nation prepares for Brexit.

Future priority actions proposed for procurement:

Greater focus on delivering collaborative procurement agreements aligned to regional and
local priorities. Such an approach will not only afford maximum access to Welsh suppliers, it
will also complement the aims set out in the Economic Action Plan, the decarbonisation
programme and support our drive to make Wales a Fair Work nation by leveraging fair work
outcomes from public spending and procurement practice;

In principle this sounds feasible, but without a mandated consistent and structured approach
for managing the collaboration we are at risk of transferring the same problems to a different
structure. This has already been evidenced through a knowledge transfer partnership project

Pack Page 74




whereby local authorities in a region have different strategic priorities, financial pressures and
capabilities. This creates barriers when trying to move towards collaborative agreements.

Delivery of a smaller number of national contracts where Wales-wide solutions, in
areas such as vehicles and fleet hire, provide the greatest value for a large
proportion of the Welsh public sector;

There is a trade-off to consider between better supporting local businesses and
reducing overhead administrative costs in procurement. Companies stand to learn
much through collaborative arrangements. Larger contracts may have been more
successful if the support was in place to help suppliers and buyers manage the
collaboration, i.e they did not fail due to the procurement structure. Welsh Government
needs to invest considerably more on implementation.

Exploring with the UK Government how we can strengthen our relationship with the
Crown Commercial Service, to fully engage where its work is aligned with Welsh
needs and priorities.

This is an important development as we approach Brexit on March 29th 2019 and will
expose procurement professionals in Wales to other UK practices. Secondment
activity would accelerate the learning process both ways and strengthen our
relationship.

Going forward, this approach will be informed by a national policy development and
delivery support function.

Is there is clear project timeline for this, who is involved and importantly, what
support is offered to assist with the delivery?

We will work closely with stakeholders to develop a new procurement strategy, which
clarifies the future operating model and enables the full value of procurement to be realised
nationally, regionally and locally.

How are the stakeholders determined, and what is the timeline for developing the
procurement strategy? Brexit and the recent resignation of the Commercial Director
means that we need to enforce some stability and ensure clarity in terms of guidance
and support.

Stakeholders have advised that this national policy approach should aim to deliver new
support in social care and construction, driving up consistency and capability in the
commissioning and procurement of these vital areas of public service delivery.
Effective procurement must be underpinned by a skills development programme. A new
capability and capacity programme will therefore be drawn up to equip procurement officers
with modern commercial techniques and create a future talent pipeline to help tackle skill
shortages and gaps created by different pay and rewards structures.

How will this training programme/s differ to the one/s currently being offered? There
have been some improvements but we have been promising this since the McClelland
Review in 2012.

Pack Page 75




Stakeholders have also been clear about the need for a progressive future digital
procurement strategy to underpin collaboration, simplify access for suppliers and provide the
data and intelligence to inform future policy and decision making. We will work with our
customers and stakeholders to develop this.

Data integrity is a key enabler of this successful strategy and will require significant investment
in skills. This transition may also require a cultural shift in some regions.

To support these requirements, | am announcing that NPS will, over time, cease to exist in
its current form. It is clear that delivering a high volume of national frameworks is no longer a
priority for customers and this is reflected in the level of engagement with NPS frameworks,
which falls short of the business case forecast.

There is still resistance to change across the regions. We need to ensure consistency
across regions to ensure that regions are not competing against each other, but
instead collectively addressing national goals.

This transition will be managed to ensure business continuity is maintained in relation to
framework contracts currently in use by public bodies and to provide certainty for the
suppliers who are on them.

This may still bring challenges with suppliers being awarded contracts.

A smaller operation will be set up to manage a reduced portfolio of national contracts, where
such agreements can demonstrate delivery of value across a significant majority of Welsh
public sector organisations.

This is the how NPS should have been set up to prevent the current situation.

The NPS team will be consulted and engaged in developing the way forward and those not
part of the smaller national contracting function will be offered opportunities to be involved in
delivery of regional and local priorities; the national policy development and delivery support
unit or the Welsh Government’s commercial and procurement programme, or other similar
activities.

This is key, as Welsh Government has invested heavily and brought in some professional
skills and experience within NPS. We can't afford to lose that in Wales. Hoping there are
immediate plans to recruit a Commercial Director. Leadership and leadership style during a
period of significant change will significantly impact on its success.

Evidence gathered through the review has informed the need for our future procurement policy
and national/regional collaborative procurement programmes to be managed and delivered
separately as key elements of a strategic, cross-cutting collaborative programme of work,
which has greater emphasis on driving up community wealth-building across Wales.

Whilst | understand how this structure may drive improvements to community wealth building
across Wales, there are concerns about the use of the term ‘separately’. There still needs to
be a level of consistency in process and evaluation criteria. We are also still compliant with
EU Directives which may limit the scope of preferential treatment to local suppliers. This
constraint would continue under GPA regulations.

Pack Page 76




Our aim is to maximise procurement spend in Wales while also using the £6bn annual
procurement spend to support sustainable jobs and growth; fair work and employment
practices; infrastructure and construction investment; use of public assets and improve the
resilience of local businesses and their communities.

All well and good but refer to previous point.

The feedback from the review has been clear that we must also work to provide a clear link
between procurement and the wellbeing goals of public bodies across Wales and ensure the
supply base can better engage in public procurement.

This is not just about process, this is also about removing the stigma associated with public
sector contracts to attract more suppliers. Lessons can be learned from NPS as they were
already doing this to some extent.

My officials will work collaboratively with public sector partners to develop plans to move this
work forward.

It is important to listen to the suppliers’ perspectives too. Collaboration is still being applied
very loosely. A consistent and structured approach is now required to ensure tangible
benefits are achieved.

This statement is being issued during recess in order to keep Assembly Members and the
industry informed. Should Assembly Members wish me to make a further statement or to
answer questions on this when the Assembly returns | would be happy to do so.

| am grateful for the opportunity to input in this review and feel very passionate about what
Wales could achieve given that the investment is made in offering the appropriate levels of
support.

In the early stages of the Public Accounts Committee enquiry we were invited to comment
on the points below. However, | don’t see much reflection on these in the response made by
the Cabinet Secretary.

e The overall impact of the 2015 procurement policy statement

e The planned ‘Programme for Procurement’ and actions that the Welsh Government is
taking forward

e Fitness Checks of Public Bodies

e Skills and Competences

e E-Procurement Adoption across Wales

¢ Plans to Merge the NPS Board and the National Procurement Board

o Effectiveness and impact of collaborative procurement arrangements

Pack Page 77




Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee

PAC(5)-05-19 P5 ¥* e *‘*
Our Ref/Ein Cyf: JR/ST - — X
Your Ref/Eich Cyf: * / *x
Date/Dyddiad: 19t November 2018 * L *
Please ask for/Gofynnwch am: Richard Dooner *\
Direct line/Llinell uniongyrchol: A’) ¥
Email/Ebost: richard.dooner@wlga.gov.uk ** ! ~*¥

L
. Xy oy ¥

Nick Ramsey

Chair, Public Accounts Committee
National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

CLILC - WLGA

Dear Nick,
Public Procurement

Thank you for your letter of 23 October concerning the follow up to
your inquiry into Public Procurement and the National Procurement
Service.

We welcome the opportunity to share our views on the findings of the
Welsh Government’s review. These are appended in the following
documents:

1. Statement: “The Future Shape of Procurement in Wales”
2. Report: “The Review of VW and NPS”
3. A guided conversation with Heads of Procurement in Local

Steve Thomas CBE
Chief Executive

Government: “The Vision for the Future Shape of Procurement 1 Weithredwr
in Wales” Welsh Local Government
Association

All three documents are contemporaneous with the Welsh Local Government House
Government review and the Gateway review. They represent the 2;1KI§I\F"£3'C"F 10 4LG
views of the officer networks involved rather than a formal WLGA Tel: 029 2046 8600
response.
My own officers are presently taking the vision forward positively in Cymdeithas Llywodraeth
collaboration with the Heads of Procurement network in Local Leol Cymru

Ty Llywodraeth Leol
Rhodfa Drake
CAERDYDD CF10 4LG
I trust this provides the assurances required. If you require anything Ffon: 029 2046 8600

further or have any queries, please contact my office.

Government and with Welsh Government officials.

www.wlga.gov.uk

Yours faithfully,

Steve Thomas CBE
Chief Executive

Pack Page 78

The WLGA welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English - Mae WLGA yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg
Printed on recycled paper - Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur eildro



The Future Shape of Procurement in Wales

Much is rightly being asked of procurement in public service. Good supply management can make a
big difference to the efficiency and service delivery capability of organisations.

It is best delivered with some form of collaboration among those with common needs and this
requires some form of central support. Arrangements set up to do this have been subject to much
recent scrutiny in Wales. Some of this scrutiny has become complex.

Welsh Governments review of Value Wales and the National Procurement Service has lately
consumed a lot of resource and created a lot of material. Senior Local Government Officers were
concerned that their voice was at risk of being lost or misunderstood within the sheer volume. They
were also keen that future arrangements be supportive of ongoing initiative and the emerging
priorities for procurement. Two reports were compiled to support this:

o The Review — a Local Authority Officers perspective of the review and the associated
services provided by Value Wales and the National Procurement Service.

e The Vision — a Local Authority Officers perspective of future need and resourcing.

In short, the ‘ask’ from Heads of Procurement was for:

One joint team going forward, comprising a policy team and a contracting arm.

This would provide consistency for supply providers, with a common source for the distribution of
information and intelligence among collaborating Authorities.

e With a series of coordinated events to support knowledge sharing.

e Supporting an affordable system of professional development and training.

e Providing a funded e-procurement system for Wales; supported centrally and implemented in
support of collaboration.

The 5™ September announcement by the Welsh Government concerning the conclusion of the
review of Value Wales and the National Procurement Service is supportive of new arrangements
which deliver wider benefits to people and communities. It illustrates that Welsh Ministers have
listened to the concerns of Local Authorities and are committed to working with Local Government
going forward.

The announcement rightly alludes to having the Local, National and Regional arrangements; which
are suitable for purpose. This does not suit a designated structural approach. If we are to have
supportive, adaptable forms of provision which continuously adapt and adjust to perform, the
structures must be suitably adaptable. National and Local arrangements will be the default positions
on which Regional arrangements must either defer to on or improve upon. Regional need will
always change because of the nature of what it is that’s procured and what procurement does.

The mix is about fit and function. It is driven by the things that make successful business or
sustainable non-commercial functional relationships. It will change. It can improve. It must.

Richard Dooner, Programme Manager, WLGA. 12" September 2018.

Pack Page 79



The Future Shape of Procurement in Wales — The Review.

The review of Value Wales and the National Procurement Service
In July 2018, a workshop was held among Heads of Procurement in Local Government to
provide the senior Local Government officers perspective on:

a. The VW/NPS review process.

b. The content of the review so far.

c. Needs and demands from the perspective of Local Authorities, considering:
i. What needs to be the same?
ii. What needs to be different?

a. The VW/NPS Review Process

The workshop was concurrent with Welsh Governments Gateway Review of the review
process. It was explained to the group that this Gateway process is reserved for large and
important projects; reflective of the importance being placed upon the review by Welsh
Government.

Verbal summaries of progress with the Gateway Review were made and recent work with
the review group discussed.

In summary, there were significant concerns among Heads of Procurement that despite, or
because of, the scale and complexity of the process being undertaken; that their voices
were not being heard. The earlier good communication with the review had not been
maintained. There was concern that the timescales were insufficient for the size of the task.

b. The content of the review so far

The omission of e-procurement from the review was an ongoing mystery. The financial
implications for local authorities were significant and it was considered that any modern
collaborative procurement initiative would need to have a significant electronic aspect. This
highlighted the other major implication around e-procurement; which was the potential loss
of cohesion and common working practices.

There was also a concern that despite assurances to the contrary, that the review was being
influenced by the minority. The consultation process was considered a self-centred exercise
which was not considerate of Local Authorities resources. There were concerns that the
review was unable to escape the pressures to assure the established roles for Welsh
Government officials. The reticence of the review to discuss resourcing was considered
frustrating; given the general shortage of procurement staff and the need to collaborate to
ensure all resources were deployed effectively.

In summary, it was expected that the review would be stopped.

c. Needs and Demands from the perspective of Local Authorities

180717 The Review of VW NPS Pack Page 80



Officers discussed the need for regional support. Linked current structural provision to the
future needs of Welsh economic regions. Discussed issues with integration. A preference
emerged for retaining and acquiring resource within Local Government and then
coordinating it. The principle was that Local Government needed to take back control of
procurement and regional procurement in particular.

It was recognised that resourcing will need to be funded through activity. The potential
means to do this were considered; in recognition that whatever means were employed
would likely result in Local Authorities paying somehow. It was concluded that we need to
be very clear about how we want this to be.

The group referred to the National/Local/Regional triangle in the National Procurement
Service Future Service Model. Delegates to the Welsh Government Review Group have
previously asked officials to redraw this to better reflect volumes; but that has not yet been
done. There was general concern that comments and updates are not being reflected in the
papers. This led to the assertion that the balance of control needs to be within Local
Government; so that this becomes about managing resources among Local Authorities. This
was also said at the Welsh Government stakeholder group. Two needs were identified:

e A definition of Regional Procurement to suit LG’s needs
e A coherent Local Government view on the future landscape for procurement

“I'd rather pay someone in another council to work with me and develop the collective
knowledge, than pay someone in an outside organisation to develop theirs.”

Role of Elected Members

Group discussed the matter of Member support. Officers and Elected Members are
collectively missing the democratic aspect of the former Welsh Purchasing Consortium,
which gave Councillors a voice and influence in things which are important to them. The
group recognised the role of Councillors as change agents within Authorities and for
ensuring that arrangements weren’t implemented unless they were fit for purpose and
supportive of the strategic direction of the Council.

Some hard truths were brought home about where we are with the review and with the
state of procurement in Wales:

“There is no vision for the review. We were better off ten years ago.”

Group discussed the Welsh Government approach to this and earlier initiatives.

“Whatever we say or take back, the outcome will be whatever Welsh Government thinks the

solution should be”

At this point the group revisited e-business.

“I'd rather have an e-business solution than procurement frameworks.”

180717 The Review of VW NPS Pack Page 81




This highlighted the missing democratic link; which was not just about linking through
Leaders but with Cabinet Members having responsibility for procurement.

WLGA offered to convene meetings with Cabinet Members. WLGA does this for other areas
of practice and it could be done for procurement. Suggestion was to bring Members to
WLGA twice a year. Group resolved to get an update paper to the next WLGA Executive, for
Cabinet Members, S151 officers and other high-level contacts in Local Government. The
suggestion was that this needs to be bold; to support regional resourcing; to put together
what matters and say what’s going to help.

It was suggested that the Local Authority network needs to control as much regionally as it
can. Officers must also take their own advice and not be too prescriptive. That this is an
opportunity, which deserves work on the benefits and not just the costs and cuts.

There is a concern that the papers we have from the Welsh Government Review are all
about bringing regional to Welsh Government. There was an action for a re-draft but this
has not been forthcoming. Resolved that the review is flawed and NPS has not delivered.
We need a plan of our own for regional procurement using a clear definition. This will be
our own version of resourcing. We need to say clearly that we want control and resourcing
delivered from within Local Government. ACTION: Write to Welsh Government Review
Board and inform them of this. With a paper to our Members and a similar paper for the
Cabinet Secretary.

In Summary:

1. There is little confidence in the Welsh Government review process. It is widely
expected that the Gateway Review will call a halt to the review.

2. There is a strong preference for retaining and acquiring resource within Local
Government and then coordinating it.

3. Resourcing needs need to be funded through activity. We need to be very clear about
how this is to work.

4. We need to regain our democratic voice and re-enable the influence of elected
members.

5. Local Government needs its own high-level benefits driven strategy for procurement.

6. The Welsh Government Review is flawed and the NPS has not delivered. It is our duty
to make this clear.

180717 The Review of VW NPS Pack Page 82



Appendix 1. Report from Local Government Heads of Procurement on the Value Wales
Service Delivery Models.

Procedure
This report was initially given by the 6 North Wales Councils in respect to the Value Wales
Service Delivery Models; in response to a survey circulated by Welsh Government.

Additional commentary was also provided for an accompanying baseline report which
identified issues and lessons to be learnt for both Value Wales and the National
Procurement Service.

A group representing 11 Councils across Wales reviewed the North Wales report and
unanimously agreed with its content. The experience had been the same for all Local
Authorities. References specific to North Wales also could be applied equally to other
regions. Additional comments to the baseline feedback were given and these are also listed
below.

It was explained that the scores below are marked low since the group felt that the strategic
criteria fit did not include sufficient detail, without knowing further the level of detail the
service delivery model would undertake and what is affordable going forward. It was agreed
that Option 7 was the preferred option, although more detail regarding the actual service
delivery needed to be seen before the group was prepared to sign off the recommendation.

Option Scores for a future Value Wales

Option Overall Score
(out of possible maximum of 54)

Option 1 - Status quo 10

Option 2 - Inward facing Policy

development and provision of Ministerial 8
advice

Option 3 - Collaborative Policy

development and provision of Ministerial 12
advice

Option 4 — Collaborative Policy
development, delivery of practical support | 16
and provision of Ministerial advice

Option 5 — Collaborative Policy
development, delivery of practical support,

S . 16
growing individual procurement capability
and provision of Ministerial advice
Option 6 — Collaborative Policy
development, delivery of practical support, 16

growing individual and organisational
procurement capability (including a pipeline

180717 The Review of VW NPS Pack Page 83



of future talent) and provision of
Ministerial advice

Option 7 — Collaborative Policy
development, delivery of practical support
(including focus on key categories), growing
individual and organisational procurement | 20
capability (including a pipeline of future
talent), delivery of innovative projects and
provision of Ministerial advice

Option 8 — Close down Value Wales service | 6

Value Wales Feedback

e Procurement Policy was developed without due consideration to prior consultation with
Procurement Professionals and Value Wales do not always understand the practical
implications of implementing the policy.

e There needs to be more support to implement policy which includes more legal advice
with standard terms and conditions and sample tender evaluation questions

e There needs to less focus on telling us what we need to do i.e. Health Checks but more
support in implementing procurement improvements

e Currently the resource levels within Value Wales is not adequate, resulting in an
unacceptable service delivery level when promoting recent new policies such as ESPD,
which has been several months late in being launched.

e There has been a clear lack of strategic vision regarding taking forward e-procurement.
The EPS programme was too much focused on e-trading marketplace delivery to the
detriment of e-sourcing activities. There has also been too much emphasis put on using
Crown Commercial Service Framework solutions, rather than testing the solutions
market with what was deemed appropriate for Wales.

e There needs to be greater recognition that some Organisations are using alternative e-
procurement solutions and that organisations using the alternative solutions are
supported in an equal manner.

e There needs to greater access to WG Procurement Legal Advice on policy and case law
matters, with potentially the option for public sector organisations to be able to contact
to discuss legal implications when new policy that is launched. This would negate the
need for 22 Councils to seek their own legal opinion.

e Thereis a need for the re-launch of a centrally funded Procurement training programme,
which is available for Council officers to engage. The training requirements needs to me
more than the Home-Grown Talent Programme

e There is a need more hands on practical implementation support when launching new
policies. Due to a reduction in Council resources we no longer have capacity to
implement new policies and initiatives.

e There needs to be a joined-up approach across National, Regional and Local
procurement organisations. There should be a “golden thread” which ensures that there
is standardised and consistent approach in delivering procurement and this should
ensure that £6billion of procurement spend in “Wales PLC” is managed and procured in
a co-ordinated manner, but recognising that local / regional service delivery is a better
service delivery than a national approach.

180717 The Review of VW NPS Pack Page 84



We have lost the regional/sectoral partnership. This needs to re-establish.

Business Wales needs to be integrated into this too. The direction of procurement is
towards closer supply chain relationships. Services which support business need to work
closely with those which support procurements. Each should be complementary to the
other.

The nature and level of Ministerial work at VW is important. How much is done? Who
pays for it and are we getting Value for Money? There is a concern that Local
Authorities are being asked to pay for this; perhaps not directly; but at a cost to them
nevertheless.

Option 7 has been selected as a good catch-all; but it is not without caveats and
concerns. These need to be articulated and duly admitted to the review.

NPS isn’t in here. This is concerning because what happens in one place affects what
needs to happen in the other. It’s an integrated system, which includes Local
Governments own resource.

Opt in or opt out is a business choice and should be entirely voluntary.

Needs a flexible approach to business needs.

Category Management should be to meet the business needs of Local Government.
Buying Once for Wales has proved too simplistic. It’s not just about aggregation of
spend.

Postcode of invoice is not the way to identify locality in spend analysis. The whole
premise is wrong.

There is a massive volume of paper and discussion surrounding this review. We need
short, meaningful summaries which can be used to feed back to Ministers and the Public
Accounts Committee. For example:

A policy and resource supportive central team supported by a considerably smaller
contracting arm. Centrally funded, not by rebate, because rebate drive the wrong
business model.

A service which can quickly provide supplier intelligence. (The Atemis model does not
do this).

A Market Risk intelligence service — to avoid a Carillion type incident occurring here.
Coordination and common practice on ESPD.

A level of support and coordination which allows good suppliers to bid for good business
and which is sustainable.

What VW needs is good products and the right communications. Have these and
engagement is a given.

NPS Feedback

There has been limited technical input and / or lack of engagement from Welsh public
sector organisations with regard to various Category Forum Groups that are arranged by
the NPS. As a result, there is a high risk that the Frameworks being put in place are not
directly in line with end user requirements. The main reason behind the lack of
engagement is the resource drain on Council Officers in attending the various category
forums and it has become impractical and no longer feasible to provide input into all the
groups.

180717 The Review of VW NPS Pack Page 85



The framework agreements delivered do not on the whole provide improved savings via
a direct award process and a hence a mini competition process is required to try and
improve pricing, which results in the Council having to do their own competitive tender
process after all.

The NPS is not proving price competitive. For example, an external hard drive was
priced by an end user at £87 NPS, £63 Amazon, £68 Currys. We might also consider that
the retail prices included 20% VAT.

Meet the buyer events could be advertised more widely to encourage better
engagement with local suppliers.

NPS category officers have made little attempt to come out and visit the individual
Councils to ensure what they are delivering satisfies needs and to support benchmarking
and promotion of the frameworks
Questions still remain on the VFM savings and whether the calculation is flawed, this
view predominantly being formed since calculations are reliant upon supplier
management information and the savings claimed is not in any way verified by individual
Councils.

Views have been stated that there needs to be a flexible Opt-out option available once
the results of the framework agreement are known.

The voice of North Wales client organisations are not always considered when the NPS is
putting together the options appraisal strategy on how to procure individual projects.
This was highlighted in the recent options paper for the Supply and Distribution of
Groceries, Provisions and Frozen Foods, which didn’t recognise at all that 4 out of the 6
Councils in North Wales are already members of a HE & FE Catering consortium (TUCO).
There is still the ongoing issue of the NPS not delivering frameworks to time against their
project timescales.

Having to undertake further mini competitions has resulted in the need to contract
manage and implement new arrangements which has been resource intensive in some
of the NPS frameworks we have used. We also feel that we have been able to generate
better community benefit outcomes locally through our own procurements or when we
have under taken mini competitions via the NPS frameworks rather than directly calling
off the framework.

There are examples whereby tenders processes have had to be aborted and re-
procurement commenced, due to the inability on the NPS to manage the procurement
process

There needs to clear evidence of benchmarking tender evaluation pricing against
existing contracts or frameworks in order to determine if the NPS frameworks deliver
value for money BEFORE Tender Award. The outcome of the benchmarking evaluation
then needs to be communicated in the User Guides. If the benchmarking does not
demonstrate value for money then a decision must be made not to award and re-
procure.

The NPS sourcing strategy for individual tenders is not deemed bespoke, since it a “cut
and paste” from other sourcing strategy. Hence there seems a lot of duplication and not
innovative thinking.

There are issues with the NPS lacking awareness of North Wales supplier markets,
therefore not enough is being done to ensure current suppliers to North Wales public
sector organisations are made aware of the tendering opportunity. Hence we find
current suppliers have not bid for NPS frameworks.

180717 The Review of VW NPS Pack Page 86



e There seems to be lack of communication and engagement between NPS, Business
Wales and individual public-sector organisations (procurement unit and service areas) to
plan and communicate regional supplier events for NPS framework agreements.

e More NPS Frameworks blend themselves to regional and sub-regional solutions rather
than national.

e The offer to undertake collaborative mini competitions need to be realistic based on
resource capacity available. This offer although has been in place for about 2 years the
reality is that not all NPS Category Managers are aware of the service being offered and
have no resource capacity to undertake the work, since they are delivering against the
Agreed Programme pipeline.

e Inthe past, there was a perception of a lack of NPS engagement with North Wales public
sector organisations hence a North Wales NPS Relationship Manager post was created.
Although the principle of having the post was sound, in reality the new post didn’t bring
any improvements or benefits since the Relationship Manager was a just “a go between
/ messenger” between e.g. the Council and Individual NPS Category Managers.

e Majority of NPS Frameworks put in place did not deliver value for money, since we
would end up paying more than current contracts. Also some of the NPS frameworks
would be detrimental to our local supplier market, since local suppliers either didn’t
relate to the importance of tendering to retain existing business or didn’t know about
the tender opportunity (see above note about lack of communication)

e There is a perception that some staff in the NPS are not solely focussed on NPS, since
they have other procurement responsibilities. This in turn has resulted in not enough
attention being given to ensure the NPS is delivering for the customers.

e The governance arrangements in general relating to various Procurement Boards need
to have better representation. North Wales representation is generally under
represented. The Procurement Board representation needs to include more
procurement professionals.

180717 The Review of VW NPS Pack Page 87



Acknowledgements: The following officers from the WLGA Heads of Procurement
Network have brought their knowledge, experience and insight to this report:

Andrew Maisey,
Arwel Staples
Chris Mc Lellan
Diane Spencer
George Ryley
Helen Rees
Helen Williams
Jon Rae

Lee Morgan
Lee Williams
Liz Lucas

Mary Salmon
Mike Halstead
Paul Ashley Jones
Paul Davies
Richard Dooner
Richard Leake
Roger Barnett
Scott James
Steve Lock
Steve Robinson

Torfaen CBC
Denbighshire CC and Flintshire CBC
Cardiff CC

Neath Port Talbot CBC
Ceredigion CC

Mid & West Fire Service
Bridgend CC

WLGA

C&C of Swansea
Blaenau Gwent CBC
Caerphilly CC

Powys CC

Conwy CC
Pembrokeshire CC and Carmarthenshire CC
Merthyr Tydfil CBC
WLGA

Newport CC

Wrexham CBC
Monmouthshire CC
RCT CBC

Cardiff CC

180717 The Review of VW NPS

Pack Page 88



The Future Shape of Procurement in Wales — The Vision.

This paper records a guided conversation that was had among Heads of Procurement to
examine the immediate needs and wants for procurement in Local Government and to
articulate the collective vision for the future shape of procurement in Wales.

This candid view was supplementary to an earlier session concerning the Welsh
Government review of Value Wales and the National Procurement Service and was intended
to identify the place of that review in the wider landscape while articulating priorities for
Local Government.

Model of Provision
The conversation was opened with a statement:

“Whatever model we use, we want it to work.”

This received general agreement and was further detailed. In summary, it was agreed that:

e The model must be responsive to stakeholder voice.

e People need to use the arrangements because they want to; because they are
suitable for purpose and helpful.

e Ifit works, its’s responsive to stakeholders and people use it because they want to,
the model of provision hardly matters. However, to achieve these things, the model
needs to fit the landscape and the organisations within it. As the majority of public
service expenditure is associated with Local Government; that would tend to
indicate a Local Government led model.

Stakeholder voice was picked up as a concern in the present Welsh Government review.
Stakeholders must be given a voice and not simply listened to. Selective minutes were not
acceptable.

“We’ve had enough of seen to be done, not done to be seen.”

Motivations of those conducting the present review were considered to be good; but
different to those of Local Government procurement leads. They were thought to be
favouring the minority and protecting the Welsh Government organisational lead. This was
not considered to be a new phenomenon and it was given that any organisation seeing to
protect its position and its staff would do the same. The group agreed to try and keep this
conversation organisationally neutral.

Business Need

The conversation was guided towards business need; which identified a requirement for
centres of excellence for each area of procurement. This was not necessarily conditioned by
present arrangements or any preconceived notion of what a centre of excellence should be.

Pack Page 89




“Give me something best in class as collective guidance on policy and practice. I'll do the
rest myself. Any one of us* can run a procurement.”

* within the professional group; given adequate time and resource.

The need for collective guidance was further discussed and could be summarised as:

e Doing what the expert consultants and lawyers do.
o Advice and guidance on difficult matters such as WG policy, market
intelligence, major projects, business transformation and TUPE.
o Targeted and purposeful — generic isn’t good enough.
e Enabling collaboration with:
o Collaborative electronic systems
o Help for suppliers to win business and be collaborative in business
development; meeting supply voids and addressing market concerns
o ‘Business Wales’ type activity. It was noted that where BW was engaged
such as in Monmouthshire, we were working well; but as a result of cuts, BW
was no longer handholding suppliers in tendering with the result that some
suppliers weren’t tendering at all. Caerphilly has taken over some of this
role locally; being able to directly help suppliers in everything but the
commercials. This was only possible because it was politically supported.

“It’s not enough to just expect local suppliers to do this. You have to get involved. You need
to help them.”

The theme of business support was picked up and can be summarised as a collective need
for a business support service that knows how to use e-bravo and provides consistency as
part of a coordinated supply management process. This could be direct or indirect. What
matters is that its efficient and it works.

Food was raised as a category for regional and local procurement which is currently being
provided by the NPS; but may be dropped. We would need something in place if this was to
happen.

Resourcing

The conversation was guided to the subject of resourcing. It was generally considered that
we did not have enough collective resource and that the vision of the NPS taking away the
more administrative aspects of procurement to a more efficient centre had not been
realised. Cuts and short-term prioritisation now means that procurement is now seen more
as a back-office function. Professional Development was sorely lacking. There is no CPD
process in Wales. No funding for the development of the Human Resource that does
procurement. We are reliant on legacy skills and a diminishing pool of expertise are not
enhancing our capability. We are not doing anything to protect the organisational memory
of Local Authorities and are considerably depleted in experience as a result. Future
knowledge needs must include the ability to support Foundational Economies.

Pack Page 90




“The need to support the Foundational Economy and the knowledge requirement for
procurement is massive. It is way beyond our present capability. It is very difficult. Itis
currently too big to even consider and | pity the poor devil who tries.”

Legal

The conversation was guided to the provision of expertise; beginning with the role of
professional legal officers and the provision of legal advice; including revision of Contract
Procedure rules and organisational behaviours to better exploit the changes in the 2015
Procurement and Contracting Rules.

III

“Legal are a friend. Its working really wel

A collective need for specific legal advice on the likes of TUPE, pressures on services such as
Homecare, GDPR and IT law was identified. In many cases this need is application specific
but not place or organisation specific; which offered potential efficiencies in collaboration.
The advantage of having a specialist lawyer operating across spatial and organisational
boundaries was appreciated; with reference to past assistance from a shared service lawyer
and from private sector suppliers of legal services.

Group was asked whether Contract Procedure Rules had been changed to take into
consideration the 2015 changes to Procurement & Contracting Rules. The response was
that trying new things is less about rules than the will and capability of individual officers in
disciplines that include procurement and legal; but also, others relating to the subject
matter. No profession is immune — there needs to be co working to develop light touch
solutions. It is about having people with the knowledge experience and ability. We need to
find a way to keep this knowledge within the sector.

Knowledge Management
Group was asked where our procurement knowledge comes from? “Google” was the smart
reply. This was reflected on and considered to be remarkably close to the truth.

Partly reflective of the lack of professional support for procurement knowledge within
Wales; it’s a fact of austerity that those who might have the knowledge have little capacity
to respond. We must either rely on familiar practice or have a go and learn by doing.
Looking on Google then verifying via the procurement network is often the reality. There is
pressure on this process, as we are collectively reducing the numbers of our more
experienced and knowledgeable officers.

The group reflected on the positive; in that Local Authority officers are open to new ideas;
but this was tempered with the observation that much is not done, because there isn’t the
capacity to do it.

Changing Role for Procurement Officers

It is the role of procurement in local government to get operational delivery departments to
their best. This might mean suggesting to operational colleagues that the thing they think
they want; isn’t what they want; but that’s just good advice. A lot of the historic criticism of
procurement as naysayers, as a barrier to innovation; is invalid. It is very unlikely that

Pack Page 91




procurement will say ‘no’ to anything. The closest that happens is advice on identified risks
or a considered opinion of any known issues; with alternative suggestions provided. That’s
not to deny the role of challenge; it’s to affirm the role of procurement as a partner in
service delivery.

Concern was expressed about the role of consultants; in consultant’s tenders not being
good enough. Any criticism tends to elicit bluff and bluster; with the assertion that
‘procurement is making it difficult’ when the reality is that the third party tendering
practices are inadequate and putting services at risk. It is because so many people have left,
that these people are being brought in. A further concern was that consultants are being
used to do things which the Council wouldn’t otherwise do, because of the known risks.

Procurement Support

A centre of excellence would tame this and prevent Local Authorities being isolated in the
event of challenge. The view of the group was that we should be able to use our in-sector
expertise for mutual support. The ability to foster specialism was considered valuable.

There was general agreement that much of the procurement support that the National
Procurement Service currently delivers would be better delivered on a Regional basis.
Heads of Procurement discussed potential options such as working to Health Board
boundaries, City Regions, or split City regions; with current NPS sites working through the
appropriate Local Authority team.

Much thought and work has been put into this process; yet the Local Government group
cannot really come to a conclusion on the best Regional model option without more
information on what Welsh Government intends to do in the future. There are very big
issues related to that with regards to the future funding and staff issues.

If we are to innovate, the use of alternative procurement solutions needs to be supported;
in particular a guide to the solution, who did it, what worked and what to watch out for.
The immediate need is for something on driving community benefits through procurement.
A group in the Cardiff City Region was referred to; but knowledge of the practice leadership
seemed vague, which highlighted the need for stronger collaborative links in knowing who's
trying what.

The conclusion was that the group misses the nascent Value Wales; which gave them a co-
ordinating and support resource that was welcome and engaged with. The balance was just
about right. Something happened along the way; but the overwhelming view among Heads
of Procurement was that they would like to bring it back.

In Summary:

1. The nature of the model matters less than the fact that the model must work, be
responsive and be used because people want to use it.

Pack Page 92



2. Stakeholder voice needs to be proportionate to the size of the stake. The 80/20 rule
makes that a Local Government voice.

3. The business need is for

a) centres of excellence in each area of procurement

b) Advice and guidance on difficult matters such as WG policy, market
intelligence, major projects, business transformation and TUPE.

c) Collaborative electronic systems

d) Help for suppliers to win business and be collaborative in business
development; meeting supply voids and addressing market concerns

4. Procurement Resourcing needs to be managed, across the broad piece, to meet the
demands and expectations placed upon the profession.

5. Expert support is needed in specific areas of practice. We need to enable specialism.

6. The central support arrangements of the future may have been modelled in Value
Wales’ past.

Pack Page 93



Acknowledgements: The following officers from the WLGA Heads of Procurement
Network have brought their knowledge, experience and insight to this report:

Andrew Maisey,
Arwel Staples
Chris Mc Lellan
Diane Spencer
George Ryley
Helen Rees
Helen Williams
Jon Rae

Lee Morgan
Lee Williams
Liz Lucas

Mary Salmon
Mike Halstead
Paul Ashley Jones
Paul Davies
Richard Dooner
Richard Leake
Roger Barnett
Scott James
Steve Lock
Steve Robinson

Torfaen CBC
Denbighshire CC and Flintshire CBC
Cardiff CC

Neath Port Talbot CBC
Ceredigion CC

Mid & West Fire Service
Bridgend CC

WLGA

C&C of Swansea
Blaenau Gwent CBC
Caerphilly CC

Powys CC

Conwy CC
Pembrokeshire CC and Carmarthenshire CC
Merthyr Tydfil CBC
WLGA

Newport CC

Wrexham CBC
Monmouthshire CC
RCT CBC

Cardiff CC

Pack Page 94



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee
PAC(5)-05-19 P6

Public Accounts Committee
Inquiry into Public Procurement - Next Steps

Correspondence with Howard Allaway, Procurement Manager, Higher
Education Purchasing Consortium Wales.

20 November 2011

Further to the correspondence dated 23™ October 2018 the Higher Education (HE)
Sector is grateful to the Chair of the Public Accounts Committee for inviting
comments in respect of the findings of the Welsh Government’s Review published
on 5% September 2018.

The following comments are those of the Higher Education Purchasing Consortium,
Wales (HEPCW) and its members. Other HE Sector stakeholders may have different
views.

For the time being at least, there has been no further information regarding how
the findings of the review will be implemented, including the issue not being
addressed in any substantive way at Procurex. Until such time that any further
information into the review findings and draft recommendations is made available,
HEPCW is only able to provide comments that are generic.

With regards to the findings of the review itself, the sector offers the following
observations:

Reconfiguration of NPS

Based on the information available it is apparent that the NPS has failed to achieve
the objectives outlined in the initial business case. There appear to be a number of
reasons for this, including a reduction in public procurement expenditure and the
priorities for public sector procurement have changed since the NPS was launched.
A decision therefore to reconfigure the NPS into a smaller, leaner organisation with
a reduced but strategic contracting portfolio is considered to be prudent. There are
a number of smaller public sector organisations in Wales that will continue to
require access to a portfolio of collaborative procurement arrangements for much
of their common and repetitive spend. The requirements of these stakeholders
must continue to be recognised and managed accordingly.

Collaboration on a National Basis

There are a number of areas where collaboration nationally can be effective and the
statement that such opportunities will be explored is welcomed. Previously the
Wales Procurement Policy Statement had at times been cited as a justification for
NPS to undertake Wales specific procurements, where the benefits of such action
were difficult to measure. HEPCW’s view therefore is that it is a positive step to
explore greater collaboration on a national basis, but to focus on commodities
where objectives are clearly aligned and most effectively addressed through an all-
Wales arrangement.

Pack Page 95



Collaboration Locally

In principle, the sector would consider more local and regional procurement to a
sensible proposal and has the potential to provide significant benefits and is
consistent with the strategic objectives being developed by the Welsh HE sector.
However, we do not see how the proposed closer alignment with CCS would
recognise or facilitate this aspect of collaborative contracting.

Capability and Capacity

Given the broader procurement agenda, there are opportunities to deliver greater
value through collaboration that are not limited to contracting. The HE Sector in
Wales is exploring opportunities to increasingly collaborative on value added
activities to optimise the use of its and its stakeholders’ resources. Areas like the
Modern Slavery and Code of Practice: Ethical Employment in Supply Chains are 2
such areas where the cross sector sharing of information can deliver efficiencies
and benefits.

The announcement that a new Capability and Capacity programme will be
developed is very welcome. This aligns with the objectives of the HE Sector in
identifying and addressing skills gaps; developing a larger pool of capable
procurement professionals and supporting them in obtaining the skills which will be
required to secure the future delivery of strategic procurement activity in Wales.

Future Digital Procurement Strategy

This news also welcomed and aligns with the work that the HE Sector is undertaking
to identify suitable tools.

If you have any queries regarding any of the above please let me know.
Kind regards
Howard Allaway

Procurement Manager, HEPCW/Rheolwr Pryniadau, HEPCW

Pack Page 96



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee
PAC(5)-05-19 P7

Public Accounts Committee
Inquiry into Public Procurement - Next Steps

Correspondence with Steve Robinson, Operational Manager and Head of
Commissioning and Procurement, City of Cardiff Council

20 November 2018

Thank you for the opportunity to provide views on the findings of the Welsh
Government’s Review.

| broadly welcome the Cabinet Secretary’s Statement and the fact that the future
priority actions for Procurement mirror the priorities that Heads of Procurement
across Wales would recognise. | also look forward to working with the Welsh

Government to develop the new procurement strategy set out in the Statement.

Although | am supportive of the proposed transition of the NPS to managing a
reduced portfolio of national contracts, the detail of how the proposed regional
collaborative procurement programmes will operate in practice will be critical
especially, as the Committee will be aware, there has generally been a loss of
procurement expertise from across the Welsh public sector. We have worked hard
in Cardiff Council to maintain our award winning procurement team by establishing
a local authority trading company, Atebion Solutions, to generate income to protect
jobs and maintain our student placement programme with the University of South
Wales.

The message of driving social value / community benefits through procurement
spend is one that Cardiff Council strongly supports and is putting into

practice. The Council is the only accredited Living Wage Council in Wales and was
proud to be the first public sector organisation to sign to the Code of Practice:
Ethical Employment in Supply Chains. The Council’s Socially Responsible
Procurement Policy spells out the Council’s approach to this agenda. There is a
collective recognition across local government that there needs to be additional
resources devoted to supporting procurement policy development and
implementation in Wales.

| trust this feedback will be useful.

Yours faithfully

Steve Robinson

Rheolwr Gweithredol / Operational Manager

Pennaeth Comisiynu a Chaffael / Head of Commissioning and Procurement

Adnoddau - Comisiynu a Chaffael / Resources - Commissioning and Procurement
Cyngor Dinas Caerdydd / City of Cardiff Council

Pack Page 97


https://emea01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cardiff.gov.uk%2FENG%2FBusiness%2FTenders-commissioning-and-procurement%2FPolicies-procedures-and-guidance%2FDocuments%2FSOCIALLY%2520RESPONSIBLE%2520PROCUREMENT%2520POLICY%2520Eng%252017.4.2018.pdf&data=02%7C01%7CSeneddPAC%40Assembly.Wales%7C762b02e378474d79eb2c08d64ed21828%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C1%7C1%7C636783061610378302&sdata=hg3954FrnYIIh30wzBlgK65CbDjNC4W6xjD7PMVuJDo%3D&reserved=0
https://emea01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cardiff.gov.uk%2FENG%2FBusiness%2FTenders-commissioning-and-procurement%2FPolicies-procedures-and-guidance%2FDocuments%2FSOCIALLY%2520RESPONSIBLE%2520PROCUREMENT%2520POLICY%2520Eng%252017.4.2018.pdf&data=02%7C01%7CSeneddPAC%40Assembly.Wales%7C762b02e378474d79eb2c08d64ed21828%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C1%7C1%7C636783061610378302&sdata=hg3954FrnYIIh30wzBlgK65CbDjNC4W6xjD7PMVuJDo%3D&reserved=0

Ag en d a Ite m 6 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 98



	Agenda
	2.1 Audit of Cardiff and Vale University Health Board’s Contractual Relationships with RKC Associates Ltd and its Owner: Correspondence from Maria Battle, Board Chair (6 February 2019)
	MB-JTF-02-7278.pdf
	MB-jtf-02-7278 Enc 1.pdf
	MB-jtf-02-7278 Enc 2.pdf
	MB-jtf-02-7278 Enc 3.pdf

	3 Public Procurement - Next Steps: Evidence session with the Welsh Government
	PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 1 - Welsh Government paper
	PAC Evidence  - Review of the National Procurement Service and Value Wales - En
	PAC Evidence  - Review of the National Procurement Service and Value Wales - Annex 1 - En
	PAC Evidence  - Review of the National Procurement Service and Value Wales - Annex 2 - En

	PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 2 - Future Generations Commissioner response
	PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 3 - NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership response
	PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 4 - Dr Jane Lynch response
	PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 5 - WLGA response
	181113 Steve Thomas to PAC on Procurement.pdf
	The Future Shape of Procurement in Wales.pdf
	180717 The Review of VW  NPS.pdf
	180719 The Vision for the Future Shape of Procurement in Wales.pdf

	PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 6 - HEPCW response
	PAC(5)-05-19 Paper 7 - City of Cardiff Council response

	6 Scrutiny of Accounts 2017-18: Consideration of draft Report

